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REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

19th Floor

North Point Industrial Building

499 King's Road

North Point Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited
Bank of Communications

WEBSITE

www.datronixhldgs.com.hk
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REVENUE / GROSS PROFIT # 2% N E F
HKS$ 'million B&E#&T
350

2017 2018 2019 2020

2021

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
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GENERAL

The Group is principally engaged in the design,
manufacture and sale of magnetics used in consumer
electronics, data processing appliances and other
electronics systems for coupling, isolation, filtering,
interfacing and timing control applications. All of the
Group’s magnetics are sold under its own brand name
“Datatronics”. A majority of the Group’s products are
customized magnetics tailored-made according to the
requirements and specifications of its customers. The
Group also offered standard catalogue magnetics to its
customers.

The Group focuses on the high-end segment of the
magnetics industry. It has a customer base over 300
customers comprising manufacturers of telecommunication
and data processing equipment, technology equipment,
motor vehicles and medical equipment.

The Group’s world-class design and manufacturing
capabilities, together with the breadth of its product
offerings, provide her with a competitive advantage that
enable her to anticipate and deliver highly customized
solutions for their customers’ product needs. In addition,
their global presence enables them to participate in many
relevant product and geographic markets and provide her
with proximity to their global customer base.
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THE GROUP’S PRODUCT LINE

The Company designs and manufactures both standard and
customized magnetic components in a large variety of products:

o Transformers

o Lan Filter Modules

o Digital Delay Modules

o Inductors/Chokes

o ASDL Transformer

o Planar Magnetics

° Magnetics for Aviation Applications

U Magnetic Components for DC/DC Converters

o Magnetics for Hybrid Network Assemblies

o Magnetics for Power Conversion

o Magnetics for Energy Savings

o Magnetics for Medical Devices/Equipment

o Magnetics for Internet Equipment

o Magnetics for Data Acquisition/Transmitter and Signal
Conditioning

MARKETS SERVED

The Company's products to-day find application in a wide range of
state-of-the-art electronic equipment that include the following:

o Telecommunications

o Communications

° Instrumentation

o Industrial Equipment

o Computers & Networking
o Internet Equipment

o Medical Devices/Equipment
o Automotive

The Group’s products meet or exceed numerous
performance, safety, quality specification and standard
that include the following:

o 1516949
o IEC950
N UL/CSA
o 1SO9001
o VDE
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e  Transformers

o Lan Filter Modules

o Digital Delay Modules

o Inductors/Chokes

e ASDL Transformer

o Planar Magnetics

o Magnetics for Aviation Applications

° Magnetic Components for DC/DC
Converters

o Magnetics for Hybrid Network
Assemblies

o Magnetics for Power Conversion

° Magnetics for Energy Savings

o Magnetics for Medical Devices/
Equipment

o Magnetics for Internet Equipment

o Magnetics for Data Acquisition/
Transmitter and Signal Conditioning
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MARKETS SERVED - CONTINUED

The directors consider the followings to be the key factors
contributing to the Group's success:

e  the extensive experience and expertise of the Group’s
management team in the magnetics industry;

o its well-established business relationship with
customers;

o its forefront technology and technical know-how to
assist and bridge its customers to new technologies;

o its ability to satisfy customers’ needs by offering
customized products that meet their reliability, quality

and delivery requirements;

° its logistic center located in Southern California, U.S.
to support delivery and service to customers;

e  the wide range of product it offers;

o “Just-in-time"” delivery and “Ship-to-stock” Program
certified with numerous key customers;

o its reputation for high quality and high reliability
products;

o “One stop solution”;

o capacity to grow due to more demands for high
reliability products in U.S. and Europe;

° cost competitive;

e the barrier of entrance for competitors is very high;
and

o its established relationship with major suppliers
which enables the Group to obtain a stable supply of
materials for the Group's products.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

OVERVIEW

As the global economy gradually recovered from
the COVID-induced recession of 2020, demand for
manufactured goods showed improvement along with
market sentiment has become more optimistic in 2021.
Yet, for manufacturing sectors to recover to pre-COVID
levels rely heavily on variety of resources including raw
materials, labor and transportation. For Datronix, we saw a
steady recovery of demand in 2021, while offset by certain
industries which were still impacted by the pandemic. For
year 2021, Datronix reported revenue of HK$243.6 million,
a 5.5% of growth from HK$230.8 million from 2020.

Our gross margin remained flat at HK$85.4 million due to
pressure from inflation, supply chain challenges, freight
costs increased, and material and labor shortages. Gross
profit was at 35.1% and 34.6% respectively for year 2021
and 2020. Our profit before tax was at HK$6.9 million for
the year of 2021, mainly contributed to the fair value gain
on investment property, while we reported an operating
loss due to factors such as fair value loss on investment
property, offset by government subsidy and social
insurance waived in our PRC factory in year 2020. Net
profit for the year reported at HK$3.8 million, an increase
from net loss of HK$6.9 million for 2020. Profit margin
was at 1.6% for year 2021.

As of 31 December 2021, Datronix balance sheet remains
stable, with cash balance at HK$208.2 million, and no
issuance of any bank loan.

MARKET REVIEW

Communication and Networking

Communication segment reported HK$64.6 million for
year 2021, compared to HK$ 67.5 million in 2020, down
4%. This segment contributed 26% of the Group’'s total
revenue.

2 [ [o] B
PHREBECEBEH20FFEBRES
SIBNREPESH HREERMHER
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Data Processing

Sales for this segment were HK$31.4 million in 2021,
an increase of 61% from 2020. The increase is due to
the successful re-captured of an electronic instruments
manufacturing business in the year of 2021 and is
expected to grow steadily. Data processing segment
contributed 13% of the Group's turnover.

Industrial Application

Industrial application segment’s customers has gradually
improved after being adversely impacted in 2020. Segment
sales reported at HK$87.2 million in 2021 compared to
HK$79.2 million, an increase of 10% from 2020. The
industrial application segment contributed 36% of the
Group revenue.

High Precision and Reliability Segment

This segment demands precise technology, advance
technical know-how and good workmanship by the
Group. The sophistication of workmanship aids the
Group to achieve a higher margin on our products. Sales
on high reliability segment reported HK$60.4 million in
2021, compare to HK$64.5 million in 2020. This segment
contributed 25% of the Group’s revenue.

ACHIEVEMENT AND AWARDS

In recognition of our quality, value of our products and of
the Group's service and performance, Datronix has to date
received 42 awards from our customers.

LOOKING FORWARD

We expected the industry demands and sentiment to
be cautiously optimistic as the effect for pandemic has
gradually faded. Yet, we foresee significant risk and
challenges due to raw material, energy, transportation,
and labor costs across the globe. Datronix is increasingly
concern with the continued and accelerated inflation will
slow demand growth, ultimately curtailing manufacturing
production and output. Ability to adjust prices is the key to
preserve margin for Datronix for the coming years, and our
management team will put our endeavor to achieve this.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue for year 2021 reported at HK$243.6 million,
an increase of 5.5% compared to HK$230.8 million in
same period of last year. Gross profit margin was 35.1%
compared to 34.6% in 2020. Our operating profit was
HK$6.9 million, when compared to operating loss of
HK$4.1 million for the same period of last year. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$3.8 million
in 2021 while we reported loss attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$6.9 million in 2020.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total equity
of approximately HK$878.2 million (2020: HK$865.6
million), and cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$208.2 million (2020: HK$256.7 million), which were
predominately denominated in US dollars and Renminbi.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had not
arranged for any banking facilities and other resources for
financing. With the above cash on hand, the Group has
adequate resources to meet its working capital needs in
the near future.

The Group has strong financial position. There were no
bank and other loan for the year ended 31 December
2021.

The Group had limited exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations in normal business transactions as most of its
accounts receipts and payments are in US dollars.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed
approximately 1,119 personnel around the world, with
approximately 94 in Hong Kong, 601 in the PRC and 424
overseas. The Group has a staff education sponsorship
program and also provides training courses to staff on
operation system, product and technology development,
and product safety.

The remuneration policy for the Group’s employees is
reviewed by management on a regular basis. Competitive
remuneration packages will be offered to employees
based on business performance, market practices and
the performance of individual employees. The Group has
adopted a mandatory provident fund scheme for its Hong
Kong employees.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liability as
at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has capital commitment outstanding at the
year end and contracted but not provided for property,
plant and equipment of HK$4.7 million in the financial
statements (2020: HK$33.2 million).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siu Paul Y., aged 81, the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, is the founder of the
Group. Mr. Siu is also a member of Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He is responsible for
the Group’s overall business strategy and formulation
of corporate plan. Mr. Siu holds a master's degree
of science in engineering and a bachelor degree of
science from the University of California, Los Angeles
in the US. He has more than 30 years of experience in
sales and manufacturing of magnetic components as
well as the sales of other electronic components for
telecommunication and data processing systems and other
electronic systems.

Ms. Shui Wai Mei, aged 76, is the Vice Chairman of the
Group responsible for the Group’s general administration.
She has more than 20 years of experience in business
development. Ms. Shui joined the Group in 1975 and is
the spouse of Mr. Siu Paul Y..

Mr. Sheung Shing Fai, aged 73, is the General Manager
of the Group. Mr. Sheung is also a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is responsible
for the Group’s business and technology development.
Mr. Sheung holds a bachelor degree of science in
electronic engineering from the National Taiwan University
in Taiwan. He has more than 20 years of experience in
sales and manufacturing of magnetic components and
other electronic components for telecommunication and
data processing systems and other electronic systems.
Mr. Sheung joined the Group in 1988.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS — CONTINUED

Ms. Siu Nina Margaret, aged 45, is an Executive Director
of the Group. Ms. Siu holds a MBA degree with emphasis
on Finance and Certificate in International Business in
Loyola Marymount University and a bachelor degree of
arts with major in business economics from the University
of California, Los Angeles in the US. She has more than
3 years experience in the US syndication loan market on
major listed companies in the US. Ms. Siu is responsible for
the finance and marketing of the Group. Ms. Siu joined
the Group as a Non-executive Director on 31 May 2000,
and re-designated to Executive Director of the Group on
7 July 2005. Ms. Siu resigned on 31 December 2011 and
was reappointed as Executive Director on 1 January 2013.
Ms. Siu is the daughter of Mr. Siu Paul Y..

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Pui Lam, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 81, was
appointed as an Independent Non- executive Director
of the Company in March 2001. Mr. Chung is also a
chairman of each of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. He is a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong. Mr. Chung is serving as consultant
to numerous commercial enterprises, local district
associations, trade unions, owners corporations and
building management professional associations. Mr. Chung
is also an independent non-executive director of S E A
Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
— CONTINUED

Mr. Lee Kit Wah, aged 67, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
August 2011. Mr. Lee is also a chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Lee graduated from University of Toronto in 1979 with
a bachelor’'s degree in Commerce. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Lee was trained at Price Waterhouse
(presently PricewaterhouseCoopers) in Hong Kong from
1979 to 1984, and worked at F. S. Li & Co., Certified
Public Accountants between 1985 to 1988 first as an audit
supervisor and then as an audit manager. He has been
practising as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong
since 1988 and is the managing director of an accounting
firm, Katon CPA Limited. Mr. Lee was an independent
non-executive director of ITC Corporation Limited
(presently PT International Development Corporation
Limited) from 23 July 2004 to 28 March 2017, a company
is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("the Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek, aged 66, was appointed
as an independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in July 2016. Mr. Wong is a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong graduated from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of
Arts degree. Mr. Wong has over 30 years of experience
in Hong Kong and overseas manufacturing industry with
extensive exposure to various managerial duties, including
corporate management, internal control, corporate
secretary, acquisitions and mergers, re-organizations,
introduction of technologies, establishment and
construction of new manufacturing plants, marketing and
trading.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Bradley D. Turner, aged 65, is the Vice President and
General Manager of all U.S.A. based operations for the
Group. Prior to joining the company in 2013, Mr. Turner
served as President for Bl Technologies Components, and
has over 33 years’ experience of operations management,
sales, and engineering of magnetic and other passive
electronic components. Mr. Turner holds a BS from
Azusa Pacific University, an Master Degree in Business
Administration from California State Polytechnic University,
and several US patents for electronic component design
and manufacturing.

Ms. Mok Sim Wa, aged 43, is the Finance Manager of the
Group. She is responsible for all finance and accounting
functions of the Group. Ms. Mok obtained a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the University of
South Australia and a Higher Diploma in Accountancy
from the City University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a member of the Hong Kong Institutes of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Mok has over 9 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, taxation matters. She joined the
Group in 2010.

Mr. Ng Chan Chung, aged 58, is the Operation Manager
of the Group. He is responsible for the management of
the Group's operations in Shunde, the PRC. Mr Ng holds a
Bachelor of Science in Electronics from Open University of
Hong Kong and a Master Degree in Materials Engineering
& Nanotechnology from City University of Hong Kong. He
has over 30 years of experience in magnetic component
manufacturing industry. He joined the group in 1983.
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The Directors present herewith their annual report and the
audited financial statements of Datronix Holdings Limited
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together with the
Company, “the Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and
suppliers respectively during the financial year is as
follows:
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m

Percentage of
the Group’s total

Sales Purchases
KR HEEE
2B ZATDE
The largest customer BAEF 23%
Five largest customers in aggregate ANBRAREF ZHM 69%
The largest supplier BRAMER 18%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate RAfuHERAREER 2L 49%

Except that one of the five largest customers, Datatronics
Romoland, Inc., is a related company in which the
Company’s director, Mr. Siu Paul Y., holds 100% of its
issued share capital directly, none of the directors, their
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
customers and suppliers noted above.

KB K& F Datatronics Romoland, Inc. %8
ERR (A ARESERBELLEHEERFEH
BEETRAI100% )  BEE - HE2HE
ATHADNTEMRR (RIEEEFAES
AATRAS% UEZRE) WEHEFS LY
itz xBEREFRMEF 2L o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 6 to the
financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The financial performance of the Group for the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 92.

The financial position of the Group and the Company
as at 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position on pages 93 to 94 and the
statement of financial position on page 174 respectively.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.01 (2020: HK$0.01) per share, totalling
HK$3,200,000 (2020: HK$3,200,000) for the year ended
31 December 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The Board
shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends:

(@) the Company’s current and future operations, actual
and expected financial performance;

(b) the Group’s liquidity position, working capital and
capital expenditure requirements and future expected
capital needs;

(c) any corporate development plans;

(d) any restrictions on payments of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders or other third parties;

(e) the level of the Group's debt to equity ratio, return on
equity and the relevant financial covenants;

(f) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;
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DIVIDEND POLICY — CONTINUED

(g) general economic conditions, the business cycle of
the Group’s business and other internal and external
factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Company;
and

(h) any other factor that the Board deems appropriate
and relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the
Company is also subject to any restrictions under the
Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for each of the
five years ended 31 December 2021 and of the assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and
2021 is set out on page 190.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment property during the year are set out in note 14
and note 15 to the financial statements respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the operation of the Company’'s principal
business during the year, as required by Schedule 5 to
the Companies Ordinance, including an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, an
analysis of key performance indicators, and the Group’s
environmental policies and performance are set out under
the section “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 9,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 10,
"Environmental and Social Responsibility Report” on pages
43 to 76 and “Financial Highlights and Key Performance
Index” on pages 3 to 4 of this annual report respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that has
occurred after the year ended 31 December 2021.

Risk and uncertainties

Our Group's faces several risk and uncertainty factors that
may affect the operating results and business prospects.
There may have other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those listed below which are not known to the Group or
which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

The markets we serve are cyclical and sensitive to domestic
and foreign economic conditions and events which may
cause our operating results to fluctuate.

Our products are sold in highly competitive markets that
we compete in products development, product quality,
competitive pricing and adapt to technologies changes
better than us.

Our future success depends to a significant degree upon
the continued contributions of our management team and
technical personnel.

Our failure to obtain, or fully adhere to the limitations
contained in, the requisite licenses, meet registration
standards or comply with other government export
regulations may result in monetary penalties and would
have a material adverse effect on us.
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BUSINESS REVIEW — CONTINUED

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

Datronix is dedicated to create fair manner while balancing
interests of various stakeholders of our Group. We
engage our employees, customers, regulators, business
partners and community through variety of stakeholder
engagement channels.

The Group provides quality service and products to
our customers. The Group also viewed our suppliers as
strategic partner. Lastly the Group values its employees
as one of its greatest strengths and assets and strive to
provide equal opportunities to employees.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has strictly complied with applicable laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the
operations of the Group during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.
There was no change in share capital during the year.
During the year, the Company did not grant any share
options. The Company adopted a share option on 6 June
2001 which remained in force for a period of 10 years
from the date of adoption. The share option scheme
expired on 6 June 2011.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the statements of changes in
equity on pages 95 and 168, respectively.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Siu Paul Y., Chairman

Ms. Shui Wai Mei, Vice Chairman
Mr. Sheung Shing Fai

Ms. Siu Nina Margaret

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chung Pui Lam

Mr. Lee Kit Wah

Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Ms. Shui Wai Mei and Mr. Chung
Pui Lam will retire from office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Amongst the Executive Directors, Mr. Siu Paul Y., Ms. Shui
Wai Mei and Mr. Sheung Shing Fai have each entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial
fixed term of three years commencing from 22 June
2001. While Ms. Siu Nina Margaret has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term
of three years commencing from 1 January 2013. Such
contracts will continue thereafter until terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party on the other. Each of these directors is entitled to a
basic salary, which is determined on the basis of his/her
qualification, experience, involvement in and contribution
to the Company and by reference to the market rate.
In addition, the Executive Directors are also entitled to
a management bonus of a sum at the discretion of the
Directors. An Executive Director may not vote on any
resolution of the Directors regarding the amount of the
management bonus payable to him.

Save as aforesaid, none of the directors has any existing
or proposed service contracts with any member of the
Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements,
no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its parent
enterprise was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors had the following
interests in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO:

a) The Company

Mr. Siu Paul Y. BRELE

interests

BARER
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES -
CONTINUED

b) Associated corporation

EEZROHER &

b) BE EZE

Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each

BREGE1BTZERERELRD
Personal Family Corporate
Name of corporation interests interests interests Total
AR 1Bl AR 22 RikER NEER &t
Mr. Siu Paul Y. Datatronic Limited 1 - 199,999 200,000
BREXE (Note 2)
(st 2)
Notes: it

1. These shares are held by Onboard Technology Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
and in which Mr. Siu Paul Y. and Ms. Shui Wai Mei
beneficially own 90% and 10% of its issued share
capital respectively, representing 72.32% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

2. These shares are held by Data Express Limited, a
company incorporated in the Republic of Liberia, whose
entire issued share capital is beneficially owned by
Mr. Siu Paul Y..

Save as disclosed above, no interests and short positions
were held or deemed or taken to be held under Part XV of
the SFO by any director or chief executives of the Company
or their respective associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations
which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or
pursuant to the Model Code of Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies or which are required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the
register referred to therein. Nor any of the directors and
chief executives (including their spouses and children
under the age of 18), had, as at 31 December 2021, any
interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe
for the securities and options of the Company and its
associated corporations within the meaning of the SFO, or
had exercised any such rights.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, the Company has not been
notified by any persons (other than the directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the
Company during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions disclosed in note 26,
Related Party Transactions, item (a) of Sales to DRI, to the
financial statements constituted connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and that the Company has complied
with the requirements under chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for such connected transaction.

The Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) and
Datatronics Romoland, Inc. (“DRI”) entered into a new
Datronix Master Supply Agreement on 18 October 2019
(“the New Master Supply Agreement”) which superseded
the existing Datronix Master Supply Agreement dated 7
October 2016 in respect of the supply of magnetics to DRI
by the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS - CONTINUED

The New Master Supply Agreement for a fixed term of
three years from 1 January 2020 and on effectively the
same terms and conditions of the previous master supply
agreements for the supply for magnetic products entered
into by the Group and DRI including the old Datronix
Master Supply Agreement until terminated by either party
giving to the other party not less than three months’
written notice. Pursuant to the New Master Supply
Agreement are to be agreed between the Group and DRI.

The Group will determine the selling price of magnetic
product required by DRI according to the Group’s current
pricing policy of such products is calculated based on a
cost-plus approach with a mark-up margin. Regarding the
methods and procedures, the management will follow
to determine, review and approve the mark-up margin,
the sales administration team will take into account the
above factors and the length of credit period offered to
DRI and determine the selling price, including the mark-up
margin and pass the quotation to the managing director or
general manager for consideration. Such mark-up margin
will be determined based on (i) the historical prices on
products with similar complexity in the same industry,
for example, similar mark-up margin will be applied
for magnetic components used in medical devices; (ii)
the historical prices quoted on previous quotations not
accepted by customers, which would serve as a benchmark
and guideline for the Group’s maximum suggested
price offered to its customers. The total purchases made
by DRI under the New Master Supply Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$44,524,000 (2020: new Master Supply Agreement was
HK$40,505,000).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS — CONTINUED

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors, of the Company have reviewed the connected
transactions and have confirmed that the connected
transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(i) on terms no less favourable than those available to
independent third parties; and

(iii) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
auditor of the Company provided a letter to the Board
of Directors confirming that the continuing connected
transactions:

1. nothing has come to its attention that the transactions
have not been approved by the Board,;

2. nothing has come to its attention that the transactions
involving the provision of goods or services were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company;

3. nothing has come to its attention that the transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and

4. nothing has come to its attention that the transactions
have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value
disclosed in the previous announcement date 18
October 2019 made by the Company in respect of the
disclosed continuing connected transactions.
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COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the Company had any interest in
any competing business with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in notes 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SCHEME IN HONG
KONG

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong to all staff. Under the
MPF Scheme, employer and employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Director(s) shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation to any affairs of the
Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on page 29 to
42 of this Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by BDO
Limited. A resolution for its reappointment as the
Company’s auditor for the ensuing year is to be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Siu Paul Y.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating
elements of good corporate governance in the
management structure and internal control procedures
of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.
The Directors continuously observe the principles of good
corporate governance in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders and devote considerable efforts to
identifying and formalizing best practice.

During the year, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except for the
following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The roles of chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company have been performed by Mr. Siu Paul Y..
The Board considered that the non-segregation has the
advantage of a strong and consistent leadership which is
conducive to making and implementing decisions quickly
and consistently.

Code Provision A.4.1

The non-executive directors were not appointed for
specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Code Provision A.4.2

Under the provision A.4.2, all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment and every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, the
chairman of the Company will not be subject to retirement
by rotation or be taken into account in determining the
number of directors to retire in each year.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED #

ERHIERERLR

ESERAREEEERBIEIREN
TEEARABEENEFREZ TN
BES REFLARERRMET &
EEEREBTRANEXERRANR
AR E B R R B A HIFT BRAEFE R o

BRT OB RRABRFERNCETH
REBBEXZMERXIALTRA (L
mARA ) M ER14h 2 REERTRINTA
3 (M7 A1) »

SFRIMESCSEAL2.1
RIEFRIMREA2.1 ERRITEREHZ
BB WAATHE— AEE-

ARBEFERTRAER 2B HBRE
TERE -EETERH UREEBEF
RENBEREB2AERE  EADFRE
HAEREBFHREERERE °

SFRIR XA.4.1
FUTESUEEEMEH  EAREARR
BAZRAMAEARRA ZRRBFAS L
WmESRREREFT-

F AR X A.4.2
$E¢F—rEJHImKA 4.2 FiBEREFRE R
MEZECES BEZEERZERIRE
AELESRRER MEBRESE (BEF
EERYPCES)BEELS3FHERM

N
a
IN °

BREARAZLFMAA AT 2EFR
BABESRIAGFTABFAREZESH
B e

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4 %R



ST

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. All
directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry of all
directors, that they have fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performances.

During the year, four board meetings were held and the
attendance of each Director is set out as follows:

Director =23

Mr. Siu Paul Y. RIRELE
Ms. Shui Wai Mei ®mEXLL
Mr. Sheung Shing Fai EAEEE
Ms. Siu Nina Margaret FEMzL
Mr. Chung Pui Lam EmM kL
Mr. Lee Kit Wah TEEERSE
Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek BELEE

EFETTCRERS

KARCHM ETRAKMSEI10E 2 LT

%ﬁk%%ﬁﬁ FREZEETFA (&
FAD KPR RESHFLARSESH

é PRESCHEIABRENREAFEERK

BARAZHEFEETFAHIN ZREELEL -

EEE
EXSREREREEALNF YEEE
EAREEZER  RBAHRKRRE -

RAFERN EESHEMIRERE - BE
B2HERUNT

Number of
attendance

HE IR

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary.

Each Board member is entitled to have access to
board papers and enable, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors,
being Mr. Siu Paul Y. (Chairman), Ms. Shui Wai Mei
(Vice Chairman), Mr. Sheung Shing Fai and Ms. Siu Nina
Margaret, and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
being Mr. Chung Pui Lam, Mr. Lee Kit Wah and Mr. Wong
Wah Sang, Derek.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are persons with academic and professional qualifications
in the fields of accounting, law and business management.
They provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.
Each Independent Non-executive Director gives an annual
confirmation of his independence to the Company and
the Company considers these directors to be independent
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

To ensure that the Directors’ contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant and in compliance with
provision code A.6.5 of the Code, the Company would
arrange and fund suitable continuous professional
development for the Directors to participate in order to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL

DEVELOPMENT - CONTINUED

The training of each director received during the year is

summarised as below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Siu Paul Y.

Ms. Shui Wai Mei

Mr. Sheung Shing Fai
Ms. Nina Siu Margaret

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Mr. Chung Pui Lam

Mr. Lee Kit Wah

Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek

BITES

RRELE
BhEXLt
AR E
REFut

BYFHTES
EiMEE

FHRERE
BELLE
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors were not appointed for
specific terms but subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

According to the provisions of the Bye-laws of the
Company, any Director appointed by the Board either
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. Furthermore, at each annual meeting one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but
not greater than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that notwithstanding anything herein,
the Chairman of the Board and/or the Managing Director
of the Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account
in determining the number of Directors to retire in each
year.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises
an Executive Director, Mr. Siu Paul Y. and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung Pui
Lam, Mr. Lee Kit Wah and Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek.
Mr. Chung Pui Lam is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

During the year, one Remuneration Committee meeting
was held. The attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

Director 5=

Mr. Siu Paul Y. mRELE
Mr. Chung Pui Lam EmM kL
Mr. Lee Kit Wah THERE
Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek HELESLE

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are summarized as follows:

1. To make recommendations with respect to the
remuneration of the Executive Directors and the senior
management of the Company; and

2. To review the remuneration package and recommend
salaries, bonuses, including the incentive awards for
Directors and senior management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed and recommended to the Board the overall
remuneration policy and the remuneration package for the
executive directors and key senior management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2021, the directors have adopted suitable accounting
polices which are pertinent to its operations and relevant
to the financial statements, made judgements and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and have
prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung Pui Lam,
Mr. Lee Kit Wah and Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek. Mr. Lee
Kit Wah is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year.
The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were
kept by the Company Secretary. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process, internal control system and risk
management system of the Group.

During the year, three Audit Committee meetings were
held. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Director =)

Mr. Chung Pui Lam SESMR L
Mr. Lee Kit Wah THELE
Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek mELLE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE - CONTINUED

During the meetings held in 2021, the Audit Committee
had performed the following major works:

1. reviewed and approved the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“2020 Financial Statements”) and discussed with the
external auditors on any findings in relation to the
2020 Financial Statements and audit issues;

2. reviewed the interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2021;

3. reviewed the internal control system.

There was no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditor.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company comprises
an Executive Director, Mr. Sheung Shing Fai, and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung Pui
Lam, Mr. Lee Kit Wah and Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek.
Mr. Chung Pui Lam is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

During the year, one Nomination Committee meeting was
held. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Director )

Mr. Sheung Shing Fai [GES e
Mr. Chung Pui Lam EmMEE
Mr. Lee Kit Wah THRERSE
Mr. Wong Wah Sang, Derek BELLE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 ff£F%F ¢ DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED #

BRERE-W
R2021FBENEHET BREEERET
ATEBIH;

1. RERBEBEBEBEABE2020%12
B318 8B % 3 3% ([ 202081 % R
1) R IR SMEERZ BAD 5T s 202087 5 ¥R
REBEZZEEEREE

2. BEEZE2021F6H30HE6ER 2
HRZEAE

3. WEARAREE M o

REE ZE BEIFRIMERBMHZ
ZEL EEERFHZEEREFEER
B o

REEAE
RRRZREEESERIUATESHR
BRERIVBYIFNITESEIMLE -
THREFEREELERE - BIMELESR
REZEEEEF -

REZESCIERBERAZLIEFRTE
EENRE - ABRAR (BFEREE - A8

REBIE) R UREAAESARQH
MARRBMBEHESSHFHNEZBREY
B

RAEFER  BTIRAREZEEEERE - &
BEZHFERNT :

Number of
attendance

HERE

11
I7Al
11
11

ERHRERERLH

36



37

k&-sA*Eﬂ:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE — CONTINUED

The Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure,
size and the composition of the Board in consideration of
re-election of retiring Directors in 2021 Annual General
Meeting and reviewed the Board Diversity Policy of the
Company during the year.

Nomination Policy

The Company adopted a nomination policy in March 2019.
In conjunction to the board diversity policy, the Board
shall consider a number of criteria on the appointment of
directors, and succession planning for directors, as well as
re-appointment of directors. The criteria include character
and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge,
experience, potential contributions to the Board, as well
as willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
commitment(s).

Board Diversity Policy

During the year, the Board reviewed a board diversity
policy. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on meritocracy and selection of candidate will be based on
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The nomination committee will review
the board diversity policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
continued effectiveness from time to time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in the Code which includes
to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management; to review and monitor
the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and
monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and directors and to review
the Group’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to
the Company’s auditor, Messrs. BDO Limited, is set out as
follows:

FriZ AR %%

Services rendered

BB AR

Audit services

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s
system of internal control.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations
and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, the Group emphasizes on the importance of a
sound internal control system which is also indispensable
for mitigating the Group’s risk exposures. The Group’s
system of internal control is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks
of failure in operational systems and fulfilment of the
business objectives.

£ By B A &
REBFR  ENAQARUFEBIE
BEEHMEBMERATZHMEMT :
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED

The internal control system is reviewed by the Board
in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material
assets and identification of business risks. The Board is
satisfied that, based on information furnished to it and on
its own observations, the present internal controls of the
Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring
and management of risks associated with its business
activities and has implemented a practical and effective
control system which includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, a sound cash
management system and periodic review of the Group’s
performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and
is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to
set up an internal audit function within the Group in light
of the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business.
It was decided that the Board would be directly responsible
for internal control of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control system and risk management
system and is of the view that the systems of internal
control and risk management adopted for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are sound and are effective to
safequard the interests of the shareholders’ investment
and the Company’s assets. Such review is conducted
annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The
scope of review was previously determined and approved
by the Board.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED

The Audit Committee has received the risk management
and internal control evaluation reports submitted by the
management of the Company. The reports summarised
information relating to the work carried out in the
following areas:

1. the results of selective testing of internal control
procedures, operation, and financial records of the
Company;

2. a general evaluation of risk management and internal
control systems installed by the Company; and

3. an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed
during the year under review.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and
discussed with the management. The Audit Committee
acknowledged that the management has been
progressively implementing adequate and effective
risk management and internal control systems in order
to ensure the effective functioning of the Company’'s
operations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Sau Fong is the Company Secretary of the
Company. Ms. Leung is a director of a corporate secretarial
services provider in Hong Kong. The primary contact
person of the Company with Ms. Leung is Mr. Siu Paul Y.,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Ms. Leung has undertaken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company
to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“the EGM")
of the Company are prepared in accordance with Bye-law
58 of the Bye-laws of the Company:

1. Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings may, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

2. The EGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition.

3. If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting within 21 days of such deposit of requisition,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for raising enquires

1. Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings, share transfer, registration and
payment of dividend to the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, details of which are set out in
the section of headed “Corporate Information” of this
annual report.

2. Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in
respect of the Company via email at the email address
at datronix@datronixhldgs.com.hk.

3. Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions
together with their detailed contact information for
the prompt response from the Company if it deems
appropriate.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS — CONTINUED

Procedures and contact details for putting
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

1.

To put forward proposals at the general meeting of
the Company, a shareholder should lodge a written
notice of his/her/its proposal (“Proposal”) with his/
her/its detailed contact information at the Company’s
principal place of business at 19/F., North Point
Industrial Building, 499 King's Road, North Point,
Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company.

The identity of the shareholder and his/her/its request
will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon confirmation by the
branch share registrar that the request is proper and
in order and made by a shareholder, the Board will
include the Proposal in the agenda for the general
meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders
for consideration of the Proposal raised by the
shareholders concerned at the annual general meeting
or an EGM varies according to the nature of the
Proposal as follows:

(i) At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period
must include 20 business days and excludes the
date of the notice and the date of the meeting)
in writing if the Proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company in an EGM or if the
Proposal is put forward at an annual general
meeting of the Company; or

(ii) At least 14 clear days' notice (the notice period
must include 10 business days and excludes the
date of the notice and the date of the meeting)
in writing if the Proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company at an EGM.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Chairman of the Board has attended at the annual
general meeting to be available to answer questions at the
meeting.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Datronix Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (referred to
as the “Group” or we) principally engages in the design,
manufacture and provision of electronic components.
The Group’s products comprise mainly of customized
magnetics tailored-made according to the requirements
and specifications of its customers. The principal facilities
are located in the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC")
and Vietnam.

This report summarises several subjects of the Group’s
business practices for the Environmental, Social and
Governance (referred to as the “ESG") report (referred to
as the “Report”) and its relevant implemented policies and
strategies in relation to the Group’s operational practices
and environmental protection. For information regarding
corporate governance, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” in the Group's annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 (the “Reporting Year” or “FY2021").
The Board of Directors of the Group (“the Board”) has
reviewed and approved the Report to being a transparent
representation of our ESG performance in the Reporting
Year.

Reporting Framework

The Report has been prepared with reference to the
ESG reporting guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

In preparation of this Report, due diligence has been taken
to adhere to the Reporting Principles of “Materiality”,
“Quantitative”, “Balance” and “Consistency”. The
materiality assessment, as disclosed in page 46 of
this report, has ensured the Report presents the most
material ESG topics pertaining to our businesses.
Whenever necessary, the Report details any standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools
used, or source of conversion factors used, as well as
explanations of any inconsistencies to previous reports.
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Reporting Scope

The Report content covers the Group’s ESG policies and
measures, and compliance for the entire Group. The
disclosure scope of related data includes the Group's
head office, warehouse and manufacturing operations
in Hong Kong, Vietnam and Shunde, China, unless
stated otherwise. Our sales offices in the United States
are excluded due to its limited significance from the
environmental and social perspectives. As we establish
greater capacity in data reporting, we shall expand the
scope to include greater proportions of our businesses.
With regard to data disclosure, the reporting scope
additionally covers the Group’s manufacturing operation in
Vietham to provide more complete representation. There
were no other changes to the reporting scope compared to
the previous reporting year.

Comments and Feedback

We make every effort to ensure consistency between the
Chinese and English versions of this Report. However, in
the event of any inconsistency, the English version shall
prevail.

The progress of the Group depends in part on valuable
comments from stakeholders. For any clarifications
or advice regarding the content of this ESG Report,
please forward your comments and suggestions to
internalaudit@datatronic.com.hk.
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

The Group’s mission is to operate in a sustainable manner
with our employees, community, investors, customers and
the environment. With this mission, the Group believes the
following guiding principles lead it to success:

» reducing our environmental impact through resources
conservation and waste reduction;

» creating a healthy and safe working environment;
» operating profitably;

» fostering a culture of involvement in sustainability
through stakeholder engagement; and

> enable our customers to become more sustainable
through their use of our products.

Our mission statement shows what we endeavor to be.
The journey towards it is equally as important. Business
longevity shall only be granted to those who look beyond
short-term gains and consider the external impacts they
have on the environment, social and governance.

Board Statement

As the world’s natural resources and environment continue
to deteriorate, we understand that our stakeholders have
increased their awareness and expectation for the Group’s
ESG performance. Having an effective management on
the ESG issues has already become part of our business
agenda.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the
Group’s ESG strategy and reporting, which include the
determination and evaluation of ESG related risks and
opportunities, as well as supervision to ensure the suitable
and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems in place.
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The Group established the Internal Audit Department
as a solid ESG governance structure composing staff
from Finance, Human Resource, Administration and
Quality Assurance departments. The implementation of
ESG related programmes or actions is supported by the
management of the Group with participation from all the
staff across different departments. The Board is responsible
for overseeing the risk management and internal control
mechanism to ensure all strategic plans and visions, as
well as guiding principles for ESG matters are operating
smoothly.

The assessment of ESG-related risks includes, but not
[imited to, environment, human resources, health and
safety and compliance. These risks have been embedded
into the risk management processes including risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment, monitoring
and review processes. The result of the overall ESG
performance and ESG-related risk assessment will be
reported by the Group’s Internal Audit Department to the
Board on yearly basis for review in order to ensure that the
Group’s ESG related risks, strategies, measures and target
progress.

Materiality Assessment

Sustainable development encompasses a holistic spectrum
of environmental and social aspects. In order to harness
the related risks and opportunities, it is crucial for the
Group to determine the most material aspects. The
Group adopts the three-step process of identification,
prioritization and validation to ensure sustainability topics
are being managed and reported in accordance with their
materiality.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 ff£F%F ¢ DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED #

ZIK’ELiT—ﬂEH%IE’Ji%iﬁ HtERE
V=pi=g: $§%W*‘B%E EHFS - AR
Aﬂﬁﬁnﬁ THHBANEERBBHAE
K e Z'—‘%.%ﬁ@%%?\sz&iﬂ te
RERHERERTEH  SHMEEET
HN2HEET EESEEEEEHEARE
BAADEE#E  UBRSBERANES
URRE  HEREAMNIEERAEEE)E
FIEAT ©

R HERERMBARBNTEHEERE
TRRE -ANER RENZZ2URER
HE-FLEERERALEERRER
uuﬁi  BIERE A BRI BERE

CERNEERE -ERERE 8K
%%%ﬁ&ﬁ@ﬂﬁ&ﬁ%% TFEHA
HETHBIEFOESI RS - UBRAK
%E@I%iﬁ‘?igﬁﬁ/mﬁmﬁ EiEkH
BEUER -

EERMME
IRHERREZEARERENLEEEE
B -AEEXEREREENEE  UZ

EFNAEERRRESE AEBERXRAR
B wBEBARERIN=FBRE  UER
IHERRIESURBHEEMETE
BER®|E -

ERHRERERLH

46



47

(1) Identification

The Group identified all fundamental sustainability
topics in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide. In
the context of the latest sustainability landscape, the
Group has determined the following 23 topics that
are deemed to have impact on the environment and
society through our operations.

(1) &5
RIBIRE - ERERESES
AEERLFAEESRNAUSERREE
B-ERRFNUSERRLS K
SEBEUAT2ERRREBETE
EHRENHEELHENTE-

ESG Aspects Material ESG issues for the Group

B HERERER HAKEBEANRE  HEREAREE

A1.Emissions 1.

29587

=
< ERF A

A. Environmental

A3 The Environment and 9.

Natural Resources

(1 A2 Use of Resources 6.

Air emissions

RBERHER

Effluent discharges

S5RBERL

Greenhouse gas emissions
BEREHER

Hazardous waste management
BEREYER
Non-hazardous waste management
BERRYER

Energy consumption

BERIEAE

. Water consumption

KERHEFE
Packaging material consumption

BEMRERE

Environmental risk management
(including climate-change related)

RIERAAER RERREEEBERREL)
A4 Climate Change 10. Climate change mitigation
RIFE AR
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ESG Aspects

B ERERER

B. Social

B. &

BT Employment
B

B2 Health and Safety
RERZZ

B3 Development and Training
B RIE

B4 Labour Standards
4 Tp|

B5 Supply Chain Management
HrEEEE

B6 Service Responsibility
EmRBBEE

B7 Anti-corruption
k&S
B8 Community Investment

HERE

Material ESG issues for the Group
HESEREANRE HEREREE

11. Employment and remuneration policies
EERFMBER

12. Equal opportunity and diversity
FERERZ T

13. Occupational health and safety
BERERZZ

14. Employee development
BERRE

15. Anti-child and forced labour
BFLEEIRBHET

16. Supply chain management
HrERERE

17. Sustainable procurement
AEHERE

18. Goods/services' quality and safety
Em/BREEERZS

19. Customer satisfaction
EFMEE

20. Personal data privacy protection
BAERRE

21. Protection of intellectual property rights, ethical
marketing communication and product labeling
MBERRE  ERLHETIRERER

22. Anti-corruption and anti-competitive practices
RESRRBRFTA

23. Community investment

HERE
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(2) Prioritisation

To determine the materiality of the selected ESG
topics, the views of senior management of respective
operational regions were sought. The senior
management, who possess a high-level view of all
the topics and have access to stakeholders’ feedback,
were asked to score the significance of each ESG
topic to stakeholder groups and the Group in each
of their perspective. Weighted according to the
proportion of production volume of each operational
region, the following materiality matrix resulted. The
topmost-right quadrant determines the topics of high
materiality.

(2) HwH#EL
FEEZHEREALEEHENSEE
BABWEE UEEMERE
EREATENEEM -SEEEA
BREMEEE EEMEETENEH
ENRE AERTEAEHESER
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ESG Materiality Matrix
BIR - HEREREEMER
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gg‘. 5 2 g 6 i:. o SR . SRt 3o
E 780
5<¢
1< i
1 9¢ 2390 150 a0 Lo
NOT ; LOW
ML ERL 'MATERIALITY
0 } { 1}
1] 1 2 3 4 5

Impact on business

HEAKENEEN
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Highly material topics (by ranking)

SEEEMNEE(RER)
Ranking Numbers Topics
BF Fr 1=
Highest 17 Sustainable procurement
BEEM AEFERE
18 Goods/services’ quality and safety
| Em/ BREEERTE
20 Personal data privacy protection
BAERRE
21 Protection of intellectual property rights, ethical marketing communication and
product Iabeling
MBERRE  BELCHIDRERER
22 Anti-corruption and anti-competitive practices
RESRRBEFITH
16 Supply chain management
HrEEEE
19 Customer satisfaction
BEPWEE
14 Employee development
BERE
13 Occupational health and safety
BERERZE
6 Energy consumption
BEIRHE
Lowest 3 Greenhouse gas emissions
KEEM BEREHR
10 Climate change mitigation
R RIR
2 Effluent discharges
TFIKBER
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(3) Validation
The Board has reviewed and validated the materiality
process, and hence the Report discloses the Group’s
performance on all high and low materiality topics.
To address matters most material to the Group’s
stakeholders, topics of high materiality are discussed
in more depth throughout the Report.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group believes that identifying and addressing
the views of stakeholders lay a solid foundation to
the long-term growth and success of the Group. The
Group engages with a wide network of stakeholders,
including employees, customers, suppliers, shareholders,
government and regulatory authorities, and as well as the
community.

The Group develops multiple engagement channels that
provide opportunities for stakeholders to express their
views on the Group’s general business conduct and
sustainability management. The engagement channels are
summarised in the following table. To reinforce mutual
trust and respect, the Group is committed to maintaining
effective communication channels with stakeholders in
both formal and informal ways. This can enable the Group
to better shape its business strategies in order to respond
to their needs and expectations, anticipate risks and
strengthen key relationships.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED #

ERHIERERLR

(3) &
EESCERNIRIFERNRERF B
FRL  NREREAEEHRHAE
SEEMREBEEEMNEEZRR -
ARTEHERUAEEBHEREENE
B ABREHAASERMNEIEE
ITEFHANNAE -

FHESHE

REEERE BATEBRESHENE X

EAREAEENRERRRBRDEERE
R-AEEEERFEANBSOERSL &

ERERE -EF -HEB RR BFERE

EERURME -

AEBCRRZERBEAFHERE &
FOEIRAKRENBEXRTART
FERREERERT R  TRABMZS
RE-RNBRRUNEEREHEENE
1% $Elz‘5(j32§iEIE‘ﬁ&3FIE‘EE’JE‘E
BENERBANNEBEERE  £4KH
RESIE A HIE R R LXIEIE&%‘—;E’J
FERME  FEFREBRINREEEE -

e ANNUAL REPORT 2021 f£45R



RE -HERERREH

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Stakeholders

5HE
Shareholders

IRER

Employees

&8

Customers

'F

Engagement channels

SHRE

General meetings

RERE

Regular corporate publications
including financial reports and ESG
report

EHAANY > BEMBRERERER
N %i%& E/n%ﬁﬁi

Circulars and announcements

Direct enquiries

EEEH

Corporate website

DAL

Performance appraisals
FRFTZ

Training sessions
IR

Social media

HREE

Business meetings

ES A —F

Complaint and feedback channels
Kk REERE

Social media

R

Corporate website

NGIE D

Emails

BH
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Topics of interest/concern

BEXE

Business strategies and sustainability
EBRRERUFERE

Financial performance

BBRE

Corporate governance

E¥ER

Training and development
EIIRER

Employee remuneration and welfare
EEH MR EF

Occupational health and safety
BEEERZE

Equal opportunities

TEHE

Service quality and reliability
RIEEER A5

Client data security
BEFERZEM

Business ethics

BRER
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Stakeholders
55 E

Engagement channels
SERE

Topics of interest/concern

Suppliers
HIER

Government and
regulatory
authorities

BT B B2 & 3R PY

Community
HE

e Business meetings
E S

e Supplier assessment
HAER AT

e Continuous direct communication
BEERBEE

e Emails

&%

e Statutory filings and notification
EEFERBA

e Regulatory or voluntary disclosures
EESBREEE

e Community activities
HESEE

e Corporate donations
NEEE

e (Corporate website
NGNS

e Social media

R
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A&

e Fair competition
AFHF

e Business ethics
AXER

e Compliance with law and regulations
BFERER

e Business strategies and sustainability
EBERRUFERRE

e Environmental protection
RIBRE

e Fair employment opportunities
NP EREES

e Environmental protection
RIBRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to providing quality magnetics
to clients in a clean and sustainable manner. The
operational facilities in Hong Kong, Vietnam and Shunde,
China, typically engage in the processes of head office,
warehouse and manufacturing operation. Environmental
impacts in our operational facilities and offices are
managed by the Administration Department. The
Administration Department ensures strict environmental
compliance, as well as continual improvement towards
cleaner practices. Periodic reviews of the system are
conducted to ensure its effectiveness.

Aspect A1: Emissions and waste generated

The Group implements robust systems to ensure all
discharges to air, water and land are compliant with
regulatory standards. During the Reporting Year, the
Group did not encounter any incidents of non-compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations related to air
emission, effluent discharges, greenhouse gases, wastes
at all operating regions. Major laws and regulations
applicable are detailed in respective sections.

Air emissions

The Group’s air emissions are mainly released from
vehicles use, which include the emission of sulphur oxides
(SOx), nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate matter (PM).
Company fleet undergoes regular maintenance which
ensures fuel efficiency, thereby reducing emissions.
The manufacturing process is also a source of air
emissions released in the factories indoor. We keep in
check indoor air quality to ensure the concentration of
acetone, cyclohexanone, methanol, isopropyl alcohol and
ethyl benzene etc. do not exceed maximum allowable
concentration and regulatory levels. Qualified third-party
testing is also carried out at least once a year, which
ensures major problems with processes are rectified.

Major applicable laws and regulations related to control
of air emissions include, but are not limited to, the “Air
Pollution Control Ordinance of Hong Kong”, the “PRC Law
on Air Pollution Control” and the “Law on Environmental
Protection No. 55/2014/QH13" in Vietnam.

RERE
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SEEHHEERRNRRESTE - THM
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BETERZFNER AKEEHRITEE
EBUBRERK -

BEA: FRMANBENNES
AEMEREAMENNRS BRHE
FoAMLHOFEEROBAEEE
o NARERE - AEEEFAEBREL
58 4 (TR R 0 B SR HE B~ 55 Ak 3
B R I B R B S B P P O A
SREVE A o T B AR R AR
-

JE 5% BB
AEBNERIEREEREBERER &
EH AL W(SOx) ~ BE L WINOX)M Fa AL
MPMBBERR » N DB E EHETEHR
B UERBEBRERBDER - BEH
TEBROERANBERFERER AR
RERELZRNERUBRERAE R
ol - FlE - ERENZCESENRERE
BRSEANFENEEKF -BEE 8F=F
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BENERBESIMYE -
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The Group has established a pathway of air emission
reduction with a long-term perspective as a directional
target by employing following measure and initiatives.

» Engage third party evaluator to test the indoor air
quality within its factors and workplaces annually;

> Replace the vehicles with better fuel-efficiency
models;

» Maintain correct type pressure by regular inspection
and inflation;

» Ensure no idling vehicles with running engines; and

> Employ geographical information system technology
to operate most efficient routing.

During the Reporting Year under review, the Group’s air
emissions from vehicles used and office operation were
recorded. The Group released 11.3kg, 0.3kg and 0.8kg of
nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides and particulate matter in
FY2021.

Effluent discharges

Our manufacturing processes require a great amount of
water and effluent discharges. Such effluent is collected
and processed by qualified sewage treatment companies.
For industrial wastewater, the Group will examine the
water quality before discharge to ensure they meet the
national and local environmental requirements.

Major applicable laws and regulations related to control
of effluent discharges include, but are not limited to, the
“Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law"” of the PRC
and the “Law on Urban Planning No. 30/2009/QH12"
in Vietnam. The Group strives to go beyond regulatory
compliance. During the Reporting Year under review,
the Group discharged a total amount of 40,149.0 cubic
metre of effluent. The Group will continue to regularly
monitor Chemical Oxygen Demand, Biological Oxygen
Demand and Ammonia Nitrogen etc. to ensure no adverse
environmental impacts result from effluent discharges as
well as to set achievable targets in future years.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED #

ERHIERERLR

REBUREREBDERFRDERDE
BMEBMUATHiEMEE -

> BFEBE=AFEREBAAEEER

MIESFNENZREE

> AERERESMREE AR

> ERRENARMEURSERNE

MIEERRES

> WRIEZERPIHEE K

> HRAMBERES
HYBR 4R -

REEIMRIEERS N

RAEBEEFEED  KEBER2021FHER
BREERNESY  mEtWMEN
MHEHRED R E11.3F% ~ 0.3F=F0.8F
E.IEQ

JTIKBEK
BEMNEEBRTEREAKME K
B WEEKIIBHEERNEERIRER
BRI o IR T ¥R NREBEEIFEKRA
HEHKEETRE  UBKRFTSERA
HHWRRER -

BAREZESSKEREENEZEELZER
EREIE T B R R KA B KT R E S F
50 2 #8 ra (49 T AR &) 7L 5530/2009/QH12
B AEEFHIBHEESHRETE -
REABENEERN > NEBHBEKRTK
40,149.03Z oK o NE B # & Hi BRI 2
TEE AYEEERTEE  URRKRHE
SR IFTEHRBEXNTANTE W
EREARREENERNERZ -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4 %R



RE-HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Greenhouse gas emissions

Climate change adaptation and mitigation is no longer
only a subject of international agenda, but highly relevant
to all members of society.

To implement an effective approach to climate change
mitigation, it is important to have a comprehensive
understanding of the carbon emission sources of the
Group. The Group's carbon footprint, presented in the
table below, is primarily due to electricity consumption
during production processes, accounted under Scope |l
emissions. During the Reporting Year under review, the
Greenhouse gas emissions generated by the Group are
presented as follow:

BEREHRFEERIREL
EHRRELABARETBRRER
FENEIE MEAMEHENEIEEM
B REEZHIRIARERZCRABPAT
RWEBESE  UARA/VEEIRADE
REBEHNNES -

RERBUAEEBRZEL  AEEL
AZEEEBRFEBRF - WTREHR &R
SENBREFETERELEERE  BRE
B8 - RACDBEFER  AEEELSR
EREFHRENT AR

Greenhouse gas emissions” Unit FY2021
BEREHEH Bfy 2021%F
Scope | (Direct Emissions) tCO.e 80.2
gE1 (EEER “EfnEE
Stationary combustion tCO,e 30.3
ElE IR “EfnEE
Mobile combustion tCO.e 49.9
RBRER “EiLREE
Scope Il (Indirect Emissions) tCO.e 2,384.0
E2 (BEER “EfnEE
Electricity purchased tCO.e 2,384.0
BENEN “EfnEE
Scope Il (Other Indirect Emissions) tCO.e 26.0
BE3 (HtEEEN) “EfnEE
Fresh water and sewage processing (electricity use) ~ tCO.e 26.0
Bk KEE (BE) “EfnEE
Total (Scope I'and II) tCOLe 2,464.2
@t (BE1K2) “EfmEE
(Scope I, Il'and 1I) tCOLe 2,490.2
(81~ 2k3) “EfnEE
Carbon intensity
BRE
(Scope I'and II) tCO,e/hundred thousand pieces of production volume 7.06
(BE1K2) “EftREE BTEHLESR
(Scope I, Il'and 1I) tCO,e/hundred thousand pieces of production volume 7.14
(BE1 - 2%3) “ERER /BTEHLES

" Boundary has been set using GHG Protocol’s widely-used operational control approach

O ERAGHGHERZEANRFEHNTERETRR
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In 2022, the Group aims to maintain the same or lower
level of greenhouse gas emissions of this year. The Group
will continue feature upgrades of the building facilities and
installations and monitor the electricity usage on a monthly
basis and follow-up with those exceeding the normal
usage standards. The Group will continue to review the
effectiveness of the existing initiatives and set achievable
targets in future years.

Major applicable laws and regulations related to
greenhouse gas emissions include, but are not limited
to, the "Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)”, the “Atmospheric Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC” and the “Law
on Environmental Protection No. 55/2014/QH13" in
Vietnam. The Group is committed to reducing our carbon
footprint. Scope | and Il emissions are addressed through
our energy reduction initiatives (See Section: A2.1 Energy
Consumption). Scope Il emissions incur throughout our
value chain, and we employ the following measures to
minimise such emissions.

»  Cut business travels whenever possible through video
conferencing;

»  Select direct flights for unavoidable business trips; and
» Promote paper recycling at office premises.

Waste management

The typical waste generated in the Group’s office and
operational sites are basically all non-hazardous. The
generation of hazardous waste, including resiniferous
waste, packaging cans, plastisol waste and organic
solvents, has been identified and confirmed as immaterial
to the Group’s ESG operation. The disposal methods of
hazardous waste are landfill, recycled and incineration by a
qualified contractor in compliance with the “Environmental
Protection Law"” of the PRC.

The Group has established clear and concrete guidelines
on the waste management. The amount of disposed waste
is recorded and matched with contractors’ reports to
ensure they are entirely disposed in the most appropriate
manner.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEERHTIZRERA A
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Major applicable laws and regulations related to control of
non-hazardous waste include, but are not limited to, the
“Waste Disposal Ordinance” of Hong Kong, “Solid Wastes
Pollution Prevention and Control Law” of the PRC and the
“Law on Environmental Protection” in Vietnam.

Seeking to contribute to the closed-loop economy, we
will continue to review the effectiveness of the existing
initiatives and set achievable targets in future years. We
employ the following measures and initiatives to reduce
the generation of non-hazardous waste and to raise
recycling rates.

» Collect and recycle all the copper wires and soler
wires waste generated during the manufacturing
process in order to minimise waste disposal to landfill;

» Take solid measures to minimise our paper usage and
waste in our office-based operations by monitoring
the printing volume;

» Provide paperless billing options for customers and
impose smart printing modes for staff; and

»  Encourage the staffs to use electronic communications
for directory forms, reports and storage when
possible.

During the Reporting Year under review, the
non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group are as
follow:

ERAREBEEFNEERRYNERERE
BRERETRREB(ENEERSG) - &
B (EEERYTRRERE R MHME
(REREE) °

RTHRREEMHER  BASEES
ERAEENERM  LHERREFT
BEEMNER - BRI T HEMEHR
MOBEBVNELELRESEUR -

> WEANEWREBEDELNAENR
RMBAREY - UBERD N RIEE
5 M R

> REWERE BBEZIRE |
BRI R ERXH T RERNIR
g

> AEFPRMHERLCHBERERAEST
k{/\% b?TEﬂ*E_t

> BBEIRTEREEAEFEMAIRNE
ITEHERE BRENEFHIE

WEBRERER  AEBAEERERR
WEZERMT

Non-hazardous Waste FY2021
BEBRRY 20215
Landfill tonne 0.2
HiE 7}

Recycled tonne 15.2
EIl ]

Incineration tonne 52.8
pald L

Total non-hazardous waste generated tonne 68.2
EENEZEZYES 7}

Non hazardous waste intensity tonne/hundred thousand pieces of production volume 0.20
BEBENEE W/ ETBHLEES
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Aspect A2: Use of resources

The Group is committed to continually improving its
efficiency in the use of resources on our operations and
production line through variety of operational control,
technology enhancement, staff awareness raising as well
as compliance with relevant government policies and
environmental legislations. During the Reporting Year, the
Group was not aware of any incidents of non-compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations related to the use
of energy and water resources at all operating regions.
Major laws and regulations applicable are detailed in
respective sections.

Energy

The Group's energy profile consists of use of electricity,
diesel and gasoline for office and site operations.

At each site, we keep accurate records of the consumption
of fuel and electricity for monitoring purpose. By
determining energy-intensive operational processes and
equipment, financial and human resources are channeled
to areas in which energy efficiency may be raised the
greatest. During the Reporting Year under review, the
energies consumed by the Group are as follow:

Energy consumption

BERUHMER

Direct kWh
B TEE
Diesel kWh
b FEE
Gasoline kWh
b TRE
LPG kWh
BRI AHR TR
Indirect kWh
B TRE
Electricity purchased kWh
BENED FTRE
Total (Direct and Indirect) kWh

#it (BEENEE)
Energy intensity
REE

FRE

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED #

ERHIERERLR

kWh/hundred thousand pieces of production volume

ThRE BtEHEER

BHA2: ERER

FEBERNEBEEEELRY KRR
FOREEIZEUARETHBERFEE
MRFEER THRESEERMANEEN
TERLEREROBER - REAFE K
SEEMALEEMBYRBEEMAREST
BEERXKERERNMEBERERNS
- TEEANERERFRBBED -

KR
AEBNERELBEEREN - 00T
o o
EEESE AMBRELBOKHNE

HEFEREE UHEZRCH BBRERE
SHRERENRE  SIBMBHNALE
BREEZRREARNEERENES
UTERBEAEBRALEFE D BIEE
MWEEKBEERE

FY2021
20215

288,803.6

109,964.5

169,773.3

9,065.8

3,535,791.0

3,535,791.0

3,824,594.6

10,962.33
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The Group is committed to minimising fuel and electricity
consumption. During the Reporting Year, offices and
facilities have invested resources to the following
initiatives:

» Separate light switches for different light zones in the
premises;

» Extend the use of energy efficient lighting tubes and
provision of light zoning in all the premises;

» Clean the air filter of the air-conditioners monthly to
improve the cool air flow efficiency;

» Carry out regular leakage checks and replacement
of pressure gauges, pressure hose and connectors
of air compressors to reduce possible leakage of
refrigerants;

> Adopt water-cooled central air conditioning systems
that can save considerable amount of energy;

» Replace heavy-polluting vehicles with more energy
efficient models; and

» Arrange server racks in “hot” and “cold” aisles
configuration to prevent hot and cold air from mixing,
and hence improve cooling efficiency of the data
centre.

Water resources

At the Group, the offices and facilities withdraw water
from municipal water supplies and surface water
abstraction in which the quality of surface water
abstracted is managed by the Administration Department.
We have not encountered any problems in sourcing water
fit for operation purpose. However, water resources should
not be taken for granted and conserved to ensure a
sustainable future.
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In order to reduce wastewater, the Group practices the
following initiatives to curtail our water consumption
currently and continue to review the effectiveness of
existing initiatives and set achievable targets in future years.

» Raise staff awareness in water saving in production
and office operations through education and
promotion;

» Regularly check piping and dripping taps for leakages
and damage, and ensure their prompt repair;

» Monitor water readings at regular intervals when
no water is used to ensure against hidden water
leakages; and

»  Give priority to effective water-saving products, such
as the adoption of low or dual flush toilets, and
low-flow faucets or water outlets.

During the Reporting Year under review, the water
consumed was merely for commercial and manufacturing
purposes. The Group consumed a total of 41,599.0 cubic
metre of water, resulting in a water intensity of 119.23 cubic
metre per hundred thousand pieces of production volume.

Packaging material

Finished products at the Group uses packaging material that
include paper and plastic packaging material. The Group
aims to consider more sustainable approaches to product
packaging early in the design phase unless customer’s
specified packaging requirements. During the Reporting
Year under review, the details of packaging material
consumed for finished products are presented as follow:

BRTEDENX  NREBREGRIAT Hik
BMAOEMOAKE  THERITREER
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> BLRAERABNEKER WRBEMQ
B ER - PNIREKBEED H K
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RALEFEES BN KEAREE
FEERSE - NEBHEFEKL1,599.04 75
K B+EMHEEENAKEEI9.231
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BEHH
AEENREmERSEENBEME
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Packaging material consumption FY2021
BERMBER 20215
Paper packaging material tonne 62.7
REERME ]

Plastic packaging material tonne 21.3
BRI EMB ]

Total packaging consumption tonne 84.0
BEMBBERE i

Packaging consumption intensity tonne/hundred thousand pieces of production volume 0.24
BEMBBE W/ BtEBHLES
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Aspect A3: The environment and natural resources

The Group constantly seeks to integrate sustainability
principles into the event management, such as aiming to
reduce waste generated during events. We strive to build
an eco-conscious culture that ingrains positive lifestyle and
habits among employees. For corporate social activities
and other events, low-carbon dietary choices and products
from social enterprises are prioritised. Waste reduction
plans are rolled out for larger-scale events.

At some locations, our new staff induction training
includes an eco-awareness component. As staff becomes
eco-aware, small contributions are made to saving the
environment, and pave the way for future sustainability
endeavors of the Group.

With the integration of policies maintained in the
sections headed “Emissions” and “Use of Resources”
above, the Group strives to minimise our impacts to
the environment and natural resources. We ensure our
operation by-products do not degrade the atmosphere,
and surrounding water and land bodies. We mitigate
against climate change impacts through our energy and
water conservation efforts.

Aspect A4: Climate Change

Albeit in the early stages, the Group has commenced
the integration of climate change risks within our
business strategies. During the Reporting Year, the Group
conducted an assessment into climate-related risks, which
are likely to have influence on our business, and relevant
actions taken in response to these risks.

The extreme weather is a significant climate-related issue
to the Group. The Group is conscious that the frequency
of extreme weather, such as storm and flooding, has been
increasing and could cause direct damage to constructions
and the Group’s assets. The Group has acquired
insurance covering fire, flood and typhoon damages to its
merchandise, furniture, fixture and fittings. Moreover, the
supply chain disruptions may occur if our suppliers also
suffer from the extreme weather conditions. The Group is
striking to increase climate resilience so that the influences
on operation can be reduced to minimal. After our
assessment, the risk of exposure to the extreme weathers
that cause the operational and supply chain disruptions is
relatively low. Recognising the possible impact of extreme
weather to the safety of our employees, we have clear
work arrangements in case of adverse weather conditions,
such as Black Rainstorm Warning and Typhoon Signal
No.8, with reference to the Code of Practice in times of
typhoons and rainstorms.
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Going forward, the Group will continue to review the
impact of climate change on its business operations on a
regular basis and implement control for significant risks
to enhance its resilience and adaptability to such climate
change.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group ingrains social responsibility into all aspects
of its operations. The Group values its employees as one
of its greatest strengths and assets. Maintaining honest
and authentic dialogue with staff, the Group seeks to
address their needs and views that ensure our conduct is
responsible at all times. We commit to providing fair and
safe working and career environment for its employees
in order to attract, develop and retain the best talents.
Furthermore, the Group commits to the delivery of quality
products grounded on ethical business conduct and supply
chain management, as well as to meaningful engagements
with the community.

Aspect B1: Employment

The Group aims to provide equal opportunities to
individuals regardless of gender, race, national or ethnic
origin, religion, cultural background, disability, marital
status, family status, sexual orientation, age or political
opinion. As at the end of the Reporting Year, the Group
employed 1,119 employees, of which the workforces
in terms of gender, age group, employee category and
locations are presented in the below charts respectively.

2021 Workforce by gender
2021 F RMEBIEI S NESRAH
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2021 Workforce by age group
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2021 Workforce by employee category
2021 F B BRI NESAH
9 54

146 .
m Executive

EIEAB
m Technical
EitAE
Administrative
T B
910 Production
HEBT

Based on the principles of fairness and equality, the
Group's staff handbook stipulates clear policies relating
to relevant labour laws, regulations and industry
practices, covering areas such as compensation, dismissal,
promotion, working hours, recruitment, rest periods, equal
opportunities, diversity and other benefits and welfare etc.
Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not
limited to, “Employment Ordinance” in Hong Kong, the
“Labour Law"” of the PRC and “Labour Code No. 10/2012/
QH13" in Vietnam. During the Reporting Year, the Group
did not have legal issues of non-compliance all major
applicable laws and regulations related to employment at
all operating regions.

Remuneration and welfare

Employees of the Group are remunerated at a competitive
level and are rewarded according to their performance
and experience. The promotion and remuneration of
the Group’s employees are subject to periodic review
according to staff performance. Employees are entitled
performance bonus and maternity allowance (for female
employees). Details are set out in the internal working
regulations which are made available to every employee
in the Group to ensure information transparency on the
responsibilities and rights of employees.
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Recruitment, promotion and dismissal

The human resources department conducts a
comprehensive recruitment review process to ensure
that the data provided by the candidates is accurate. The
Group's recruitment and promotion process are carried out
in a fair and open manner for all employees; employees
are recognised and rewarded by their contribution, work
performance and skills, and outcomes will not be affected
by any discrimination. The certain staff with outstanding
performance are granted promotion opportunity. In
the case of dismissal, the internal working regulations
is adhered to which ensures the entire procedure is
compliant with statutory requirements.

During the Reporting Year under review, the Group’s
employee turnover rate was 57%. The charts below
present the turnover rate by gender, age and geographical
region respectively.
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Aspect B2: Workplace health and safety

It is of paramount importance to ensure a safe and
healthy workplace for our employees as the Group places
its employee’s health and safety as one of the highest
priorities in its operation. The Group is committed to
providing a healthy and safe working environment for our
skilled workers in factories and employees in offices.

The Group’s management is responsible for identifying any
actual and potential hazards and risks to each individual
and a safe and hygienic working environment. On the
production line, the factory supervisors and managers
both help to ensure all the health and safety measures are
being implemented effectively. Any non-conformities will
be corrected immediately. In case of high-level decision
is required, the factory supervisors and manager will
escalate the issues to the Group’s top management to seek
further instruction. The Group also engages third party
environmental experts to test if the indoor concentration
of hazardous air quality, noise and temperature of the
workplaces are in the permissible concentration-time
weighted average and regulatory levels.

The Group has established the Code of Practice and
Work Instructions, in which safety and health issues are
addressed, for our skilled workers to follow. Training
and work instructions will be given to new workers to
make sure they are capable of operating the production
equipment safely. For some of the manufacturing
procedures where fumes or particles may be emitted,
ventilation units have been installed to minimise the
potential safety and health risks. Since factory workers are
exposed to chemical hazardous agents, annual body check
is provided by the Group to them to ensure their health.

The Group had consecutively attained a zero rate of
work-related fatalities in the past three years. If any case
occurred, the cases would be handled according to internal
accident handling procedures and reported to the relevant
authority in compliance with the law. The filed cases
will be used as training materials to assist employees to
prevent reoccurrence. During the Reporting Year, there
were no lost days due to work injury.

Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not
limited to, “Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance”
in Hong Kong, “Law on Work Safety” in the PRC and the
“Law on Occupational safety and health” in Vietnam.
Our management is also responsible for ensuring the
compliance with the requirements of relevant laws and
regulations in our working environment.
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Aspect B3: Development and training

People are our greatest assets. We tailor the macro-level
development of our human capital to the Group’s
corporate strategy. The Group develops yearly training
plans that comply with relevant statutory requirements
and cater to the needs of our staff. Internal training
programmes provided by the Group include induction
training to the new employees and on-the-job training
to the existing employees. In order to encourage
our existing employees to have a continuous lifelong
learning, the Group also offers education subsidies to its
eligible employees in variety of fields of quality system
management, business management, engineering and
technology management etc.

During the Reporting Year under review, a total number
of 399 employees have attended training, of which the
employees trained in terms of gender and employee
category are presented in the below charts respectively.
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During the Reporting Year under review, the Group
has provided a total of 6,834 training hours for staff,
representing average 6.2 training hours per staff of
which the average training hours in terms of gender and
employee category are presented as follow:

2021 AVERAGE TRAINING
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Aspect B4: Labour Standard

The Group upholds high operating practices standard.
Child and forced labour, though seemingly irrelevant to
most developed societies, are in fact easily present in
the value chain of any business operation. To combat
against such practices, the Group is committed to prohibit
all forms of child labour and forced labour or modern
slavery, not only in our operations but also throughout
the supply chain. In addition, cases of child labour in our
businesses are averted by conducting age verification
of all job applicants to check their age and identity
documentation thoroughly during the recruitment and
employment process. With regard to the supply chain, the
Group evaluates labour practices of potential suppliers and
subcontractors with due diligence prior to any partnership.

For our factory in the PRC, which is the Group’s main
manufacturing site, the Group has established and
implements a Voluntary Overtime Working Scheme, which
provide flexibility for skilled workers overtime work. The
rights and freedoms of every individual is protected as
no worker is mandatorily asked to work in unreasonable
working hours in our Group.
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During the Reporting Year under review, the Group did
not encounter any incidents of non-compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations related to anti-child and
anti-forced labour practices at the operating regions.
Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not
limited to, “Employment Ordinance” in Hong Kong, the
“Labour Law of the PRC” and “Labour Code No. 10/2012/
QH13" in Vietnam.

Aspect B5: Supply chain management

The Group is committed to developing and maintaining
effective and mutually beneficial working relationships
with our business partners. The major raw materials
provided by our suppliers are ferrite core, copper wires and
bobbins. The procurement process is strictly monitored by
top management and suppliers are all selected from the
Group's Approved Vendor List (AVL) in which vendors are
assessed through the Group’s due diligence procedures.

In order to ensure the supply chain as sustainable as
possible, the Group’s supplier code of conduct requires full
compliance to all applicable local and national laws. All the
Group's suppliers are required to demonstrate that they
are certified or complied with internationally recognized
environmental and safety related standards, such as
ISO9001 or IATF16949. The Group procured from a total
of 1,233 suppliers during the Reporting Year at which
none of suppliers having significant actual and potential
negative environmental and social impacts came to our
attention.
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Furthermore, the Group gradually takes environmental
consideration into account in the procurement process. To
integrate the environmental vision into the procurement
of product supplies, the Group seeks to ensure all its
materials or components received from suppliers free from
lead. Priority will be given to environmentally friendly
materials and office goods, so as to raise the suppliers’
awareness of sustainable development.

The Group requires its suppliers to provide Certificate of
Conformance to confirm the products’ specification. The
Group's Quality Assurance Team will conduct a throughout
and rigorous due diligence by vendor survey and supplier
evaluation on its new suppliers along with on-site audits
to assess their product quality as well as their practices
in managing environmental and social risks. No purchase
order will be made until a new conform assessment of the
new suppliers.

The Group regularly conducts the supply chain ESG risks
assessment to determine and address the Group’s level
of exposure to country-specific, product-specific and
industry-specific risks. The Group’s Quality Assurance
Team conducts annual evaluation for existing suppliers.
For the disqualified supplier, the Group will terminate the
working relationships with them. The enhanced control
will be implemented in the workshop provided to qualified
suppliers with way to meet the Group’s criteria.

Aspect B6: Product responsibility

The Group offers quality products and services grounded
on responsible operating practices. We commit to meeting
customer needs through innovation and sound business
ethics.

Product quality and safety

Assuring the quality and safety of our product and services
are of topmost importance. A majority of the Group’s
magnetics are customized according to the requirements
of its customers. Thus, other than the Group’s own quality
management system (“QMS"), the products manufactured
by the Group will be tested and certified by independent
third party to make sure the products are able to attain
a level of satisfaction that the Group and its customers
expect in term of quality, health and safety.
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Our products are attached with necessary warnings and
instructions in form of label and product manual enabling
our customers to assess the risk in using the magnetics and
to take precautions against those risks. Our skilled workers
are also required to follow the “Non-conforming Product
Procedure” of “Company Operation Procedure” to deal
with non-conforming items and disposition of suspected
products.

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not encounter
any incidents of non-compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations related to product health and safety at all
operating regions. Major laws and regulations applicable
include, but are not limited to, IATF16949, [EC950, UL/
CSA, 1SO9001 and VDE.

In addition to the internal and external quality assurance,
the Group has Quality Assurance Department to properly
handle customer complaints. A formal complaint
mechanism handles all cases in a fair and systematic
manner. Regarding the customer-returned product, the
“Customer-returned Product Handling Procedure” of
“Company Operating Procedure” is available to instruct
our staff to process the returned products from customers.
In FY2021, there was an immaterial number of packing
related complaints. All of these complaints were properly
handled. Other than that, no products were subject to
recalls for safety and health reason.

Ethical operating practices

The Group places great value in conducting all aspects
of our businesses with integrity and honest values. From
protection of data privacy and intellectual property to
ethical marketing communication, our robust management
approaches ensure even the most trivial of aspects is not
overlooked. During the Reporting Year, the Group did
not encounter any incidents of non-compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations related to data privacy,
advertising, labelling matters at all operating regions.
Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are
not limited to, “Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance” and
"Competition Ordinance” in Hong Kong.
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Personal data privacy protection

The Group is committed to protecting privacy and
confidentiality of the collected personal data. The Group
has established internal policies on handling personal data
recorded from our customers and employees. We collect
data only in a lawful and fair way, for directly related
purposes of which the data subject is clearly notified.
Adhering to policy requirements, the Group maintains
the personal data storage which is secured to prevent any
unauthorized or accidental access. We ensure the data is
accurate and not kept longer than necessary.

The following steps are to make sure our computer data
bases secure and to safeguard the information we possess
about the customers.

> Install updated anti-virus software and firewall,

» Install and run network diagnostic tools;

» Back up customer data regularly; and

»  Encrypt data in transmission.

We conduct periodic risk assessment. Regarding the launch
of projects that present greater risks, we conduct privacy
impact assessments to mitigate against the risks. Building
a culture of zero tolerance is dependent on effective

communication of policies. Thus, the Group invests
resources on related training and education.
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Intellectual property rights protection

Business end-use piracy is applicable to all businesses
no matter which industry or sector. In efforts to strive
for industry best practices, the Group has established
a management approach to protect intellectual
property rights. The top management are responsible
for maintaining clear record or register on the use of
legitimate software, non-infringing copies of media
material, as well as making and distribution of copyright
materials on paper. Our expectations are communicated
clearly to all employees. Ongoing assessment of
management approach is conducted through top
management reviews, as well as periodic audits on the
integrity of the record and registry.

Advertising and product labelling

Responsible marketing practices are crucial to gaining
customer trust and confidence. The Group has established
clear guidelines on the ethical usage of all forms of sales
promotion, corporate sponsorships, as well as direct
marketing and digital marketing communications. All
direct marketing and digital marketing communications,
especially product endorsements, should uphold
transparency. Ongoing assessment of policies is conducted
through periodic assessment.

All sales promotions should meet reasonable consumer
expectations, as well as be administered prompt and
efficient. Our salespersons are trained to provide
customers well complete, accurate and not misleading
information which is significant for them to make
the purchase decisions. Such information includes
the potential risks associated with the products they
purchased, such as health or safety risk, financial risk, etc.
Any illegal, unethical, discriminatory or deceptive practices,
such as abusive marketing tactics, abusive debt collection
or other improper behaviors that may pose unnecessary
risks or harm consumers made by the salespersons are
strictly prohibited.
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the
highest standards of openness, probity and accountability,
as well as to conducting business with integrity, honesty
and transparency. We adopt the lowest level of acceptance
for corruption risks to build a culture of zero tolerance to
corrupt and anti-competitive practices. The Board, with the
assistance of the internal Quality Assurance Team of the
Group, leads and oversees the Group’s entire management
approach towards anti-corruption compliance. During the
Reporting Year, the Group did not encounter any incidents
of non-compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
at all operating regions. Major laws and regulations
applicable include, but are not limited to, “Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance”, “Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance” in Hong Kong.

Our whistle-blowing mechanism ensures that our policies
are adhered to. The internal Quality Assurance Team of
the Group conducts internal audit annually on the Group’s
operations against applicable compliances and Group
internal requirements. The consequences of breach of code
are stated in our policies, including the reporting to the
relevant law enforcement agency in case of criminal acts,
or disciplinary actions or termination of employment as
applicable. Also, the Group has designated an independent
team with a senior authority to handle the complaints
and reports. The procedures and guidelines for the proper
handling of complaints and reports are also clearly stated
in the anti-corruption policy.
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The development of robust internal controls is the key
to our management approach. We have established
anti-corruption policy on the prohibition of bribery and
corruption, acceptance or offering of gifts and advantages
and abuse of office, as well as declaration of conflict
of interests. The soliciting or accepting of advantages
from parties as a reward for or inducement to doing
any act in relation to the company’s business is strictly
prohibited. The guidelines of our anti-corruption policy
make it clear to all staff the criteria of accepting and
offering of gifts and advantages becomes beyond that
of a courtesy or token gift. Senior management is also
clearly provided guidance on what constitutes abuse of
office, such as regarding the misuse of company’s assets
for personal interest. With regard to conflict of interests,
the fundamental rule is to avoid any conflict of interest
as far as practicable. In the event of an inevitable case,
the conflict of interest is required to be declared to senior
management so that appropriate resolution actions can be
taken.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group promotes fair and open competition through
our anti-corruption policy on combating against
anti-competitive practices. Our policies outline clear
guidelines that prohibit cartels, and any activities of trade
associations and industry bodies which prevents, restricts
or distorts competition. The abuse of market power,
such in the form of predatory pricing, anti-competitive
tying and bundling, exclusive dealing, are also forbidden.
The Group will also provide employees of all levels
with anti-corruption trainings in order to enhance the
awareness of anti-corruption. The Group recognises that
adherence to the principles of competition is essential
to the development of long-term relationships with our
stakeholders on mutual trust.

Aspect B8: Community investment

The Group is committed to operate as a responsible
corporate and continually supporting the economic and
social vitality of local communities through corporate
sponsorships and charitable donations. Furthermore,
the Group sees high literacy as a foundation for the
advancement of society. The Group believes public welfare
is important and necessary for the development of the
Group. We always seek to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates. As part of the Group’s
social commitment, the Group actively employs individuals
with disabilities, primarily at the operation in the PRC,
which represent 1.79% of the Group’s total workforce in
the PRC.

We believe that the development of a better future for
our community relies on joint participation of people,
corporations and the government. In addition, the Group
also encourages all employees to actively participate in
volunteer activities and environmental protection activities.
We hope it can raise their concern for environment and
society, and thus inspiring more people to participate in
community services and develop a better future for our
community.
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BRRBFEAEES

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting
(the "Annual General Meeting”) of Datronix Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) will be held at 19/F., North
Point Industrial Building, 499 King’'s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong on 1 June 2022 (Wednesday) at 2: 30 p.m.
for considering and, if thought fit, passing, with or
without amendments, the following resolutions as ordinary
resolutions of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

1. To consider and adopt the audited financial
statements and the reports of the directors and
independent auditor of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021;

2. To declare a final dividend;

3. To re-elect Directors and to authorise the board
of Directors (the “Board”) to fix the Directors’
remuneration;

4. To re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company
and to authorise the Board to fix their remuneration;

5. "THAT:

(@) subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution, and
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the exercise by the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) during the Relevant Period
(as defined below) of all the powers of the
Company to allot, issue and deal with additional
shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of
the Company (the “Shares”) and to make or
grant offers, agreements and options (including
warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and any
other securities which carry rights to subscribe for
or are convertible into shares of the Company)
which would or might require the exercise of
such powers be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) above shall

authorise the Directors during the Relevant Period
to allot, issue and deal with additional Shares and
to make or grant offers, agreements and options
(including warrants, bonds, debentures, notes
and any other securities which carry rights to
subscribe for or are convertible into Shares) which
would or might require the exercise of such
powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital
allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally
to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option
or otherwise) and issued by the Directors
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this
resolution during the Relevant Period, otherwise
than pursuant to: (i) a Rights Issue (as defined
below); or (i) any issue of Shares for the grant
or exercise of any options granted under any
share option scheme of the Company or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted for
the grant or issue to officers and/or employees
(including Directors) of the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries of Shares or rights to
acquire Shares; or (iii) any issue of Shares as scrip
dividend or similar arrangements providing for
the allotment of Shares in lieu of the whole or
part of a dividend on shares of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of
the Company in force from time to time; or (iv)
any issue of Shares upon the exercise of rights of
subscription or conversion under the terms of any
existing warrants of the Company or any existing
securities of the Company, shall not exceed 20%
of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue as at the date
of the passing of this resolution and the said
authority shall be limited accordingly; and
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(d) for the purposes of this resolution: (d) BARBRMS

79

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this resolution until whichever is the
earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by Bye-laws of the Company or
any applicable laws in Bermuda to be held;
and

(iii) the passing of an ordinary resolution by
shareholders of the Company in general
meeting revoking, varying or renewing
the authority given to the Directors by this
resolution.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of Shares, or offer
or issue of warrants, options or other securities
giving rights to subscribe for Shares open for
a period fixed by the Directors to holders of
Shares whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on a fixed record date
in proportion to their then holdings of Shares
(subject to such exclusions or other arrangements
as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient
in relation to fractional entitlements, or having
regard to any restrictions or obligations under
the laws of, or the requirements of, or the
expense or delay which may be involved in
determining the existence or extent of any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or
the requirements of, any jurisdiction applicable
to the Company, or any recognized regulatory
body or any stock exchange applicable to the
Company).”;
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

6. "THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the
exercise by the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) during the Relevant Period (as
defined below) of all powers of the Company
to repurchase its shares of HK$0.1 each in the
share capital of the Company (the “Shares”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) or on any other stock
exchange on which shares of the Company may
be listed and recognized by the Securities and
Futures Commission or the Stock Exchange for
such purpose, subject to and in accordance with
the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Futures Commission, the Stock Exchange or of
any other stock exchange as amended from time
to time and all applicable laws in this regard,
be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of Shares which
the Directors are authorised to repurchase
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this
resolution during the Relevant Period shall not
exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount
of the share capital of the Company in issue as
at the date of this resolution and the authority
pursuant to paragraph (a) of this resolution shall
be limited accordingly; and
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(©)

for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the date of
passing of this resolution until whichever is the
earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by the Bye-laws of the Company
or any applicable laws of Bermuda to be
held; and

(iii) the passing of an ordinary resolution by
shareholders of the Company in general
meeting revoking, varying or renewing
the authority given to the Directors by this
resolution.”
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“THAT conditional upon the passing of resolutions
nos. 5 and 6 set out in the notice convening this
meeting, the unconditional general mandate granted
to the Directors to exercise the powers of the
Company to allot, issue and deal with additional
Shares and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options which might require the exercise of
such powers pursuant to resolution no. 5 set out in
the notice convening this meeting be and is hereby
extended by the addition thereto of an amount
representing the aggregate nominal amount of the
share capital of the Company repurchased by the
Company under the authority granted pursuant to
resolution no. 6 set out in the notice convening
this meeting, provided that such amount shall not
exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of
the issued Shares as at the date of the passing of this
resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Datronix Holdings Limited
Leung Sau Fong
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 21 April 2022
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Bt -

Notes:

83

Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote
at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to
attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. A proxy need not
be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy together with the power of
attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed,
or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be deposited at
the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Hong Kong Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong not later than Hong Kong time 2:30 p.m. on 30
May 2022 or any adjournment thereof.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 27 May 2022 to Wednesday, 1 June 2022,
both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to be entitled to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with Hong Kong
Registrars Limited, the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 26 May
2022.

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval
by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 8 June 2022 to
Friday, 10 June 2022, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. To qualify
for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with Hong Kong
Registrars Limited, the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 7 June
2022. The cheques for dividend payment will be sent on
about Tuesday, 21 June 2022.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEERHTIZRERA A

NEREFEASINELREZRR
AREZER—NUIUEARRKEHFELRE
RERERRE -ZZRKRBARFRRAR
o

RRZERKERNEBEAZREER A
BREXH(NE) REABAZEERHZZ
ERESIREXMHEL  BEREBEHE
202258308 THF 28300 AI R B AR A T
EEBZBRNBFERIEETBHEFERT
BRLAF it AFBEFE2FABER183
EAMBUIT7I1712-17168 » FAEN -

AATHRMDBEETAEH2022F5827
H(EHH) BE2022F6818 (EH=)
L (BEEEWA) GERERMBE T
FE - AFCERLEEERRRBEAS
WHRELRE MEBFXHERBER
ZKAN2022F58268 (EHM) TH48F
302 ZAIREAQATZEBRDIBE ZEE
PTEEBESFBLERAT U AEE
B ERKERISIFEEFPOI7HE1712-
1716 % o

BRABREASANERRRAFARE L
ERAQXTARRAEFAES - KATWK
HIBEERTEEHA2022F6880 (EH=)#
F2022%6H10B (EHA) L (BEER
WMB)EERERDBFECFE  ATE
WEKRBEREZENK  FEBFEXHER
BEREREN2022F6878 (BH )T
FARF30D 2AIREAR AT 2 EEBRDBF
BRI EETBESETAERLT  HitE
BBEFERREBERISIEAMP A7
1712-1716% - RE X EHHMR2022%F6 8
21 (B ) Fd -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4 %R



%8 3L 1% 25 B 3R &

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

|IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DATRONIX HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Datronix Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 189,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Refer to notes 5(b)(ii) and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements

The Group had goodwill of approximately HK$9,486,000
as at 31 December 2021 arising from the Company’s
acquisition of a business in 2012.

Management concluded that there was no impairment
of the goodwill based on the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (“CGU"”) which was determined by
a value-in-use calculation based on cash flow projections
from formally approved a budget covering a five-year
period. The preparation of cash flow projections requires
significant management judgment with respect to
assumptions in relation to discount rate and underlying
cash flows, in particular future operating margin and
growth rates. We identified the impairment assessment of
goodwill as a key audit matter as it requires management
to exercise significant judgment on the cash flow
projections and the goodwill is quantitatively significant to
the consolidated financial statements.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

— Challenging the reasonableness of the key inputs and
assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation;

— Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budget, and considering the reasonableness
of this budget;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS — CONTINUED
Impairment assessment of goodwill - continued
Our response:

— Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist
us in assessing reasonableness of the valuation
methodology applied and the key assumptions used in
the impairment assessment of goodwill; and

—  Evaluating the reasonableness of the disclosures in
relation to the impairment assessment goodwill.

We found the assumptions made by management in
relation to the value-in-use calculation were reasonable
based on available evidence. The significant inputs are
appropriately disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Write-down assessment of inventories

Refer to notes 5(b)(iii) and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements

The Group had inventories of approximately
HK$106,647,000 as at 31 December 2021 which consist of
raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods.

The Group’s management writes down slow-moving
or obsolete inventories based on an assessment of net
realisable value. Inventory will be written down where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
net realisable value is less than cost. The determination
of net realisable value requires the use of judgment
and estimates. The subsequent change in estimation
will impact carrying value of the inventories and lead
to a revision of the amount of inventories written
down in the respective period. The Group recognised a
reversal of write-down of inventories of approximately
HK$4,795,000 for the year. We identified the write-down
assessment of inventories as a key audit matter as it
requires management to exercise significant judgment on
estimating net realisable value of the inventories and the
carrying amount of inventories is quantitatively significant
to the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS - CONTINUED
Write-down assessment of inventories — continued
Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’'s write-down
assessment included:

— Assessing the reasonableness of the inventory
provision policy applied by the management;

— Assessing the reasonableness of the net realisable
value of inventories estimated by the management
for those slow-moving or obsolete inventories with
reference to the recent selling prices, consumptions
and subsequent sales of inventories;

— Testing on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing
of inventories prepared by management; and

— Identifying any physically obsolete inventories during
our observation of the Group’s inventory counts.

We found that management’s estimation of net realisable
value and reversal of write-down of inventories are
reasonable based on the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in
the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT - CONTINUED

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tang Tak Wah

Practising Certificate Number P06262
Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2021F12A831HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
20214 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FER FHET
Revenue —E £ 6 243,601 230,806
Cost of sales HERA (158,192) (150,915)
Gross profit EF 85,409 79,891
Other revenue and gains =N 7 5,504 12,791
Distribution and selling expenses DHEREEER (17,604) (17,217)
Administrative expenses THER (68,601) (63,685)
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment REMENEE
property W (EE) 15 2,200 (15,800)
Finance costs BM%ER (36) (44)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BB ARR (EE)
expense 8 6,872 (4,064)
Income tax expense Frig i i 10
Current tax — tax for the year BIEAREIE — N F E 15 (3,992) (3,459)
— (under)/over provision in respect - BEFERE
of prior years, net (FR) /&8R-
FEE (31) 33
Deferred tax credit IEFERLIH IR & 977 582
(3,046) (2,844)
Profit/(loss) for the year and FERN(FE)
attributable to owners of the REQABHEE AEL
Company 3,826 (6,908)
Other comprehensive income, Hin2mEU s - NBRBIE
net of tax 11
ltem that may be reclassified HEAEHDE
subsequently to profit or loss: BRmIER :
Exchange differences on translating BIIEBRERELE
foreign operations ZENELE 5,819 15,980
ltem that will not be reclassified to FOEHHEEBRWIER !
profit or loss:
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold EMBRAZHEL
land and buildings held for own use R EB#EFZ
E&R 9,355 1,977
Other comprehensive income FEHMZAREREAATR
for the year and attributable to BB AEAG HNRBIE
owners of the Company, net of tax 15,174 17,957
Total comprehensive income FEXEHWSLEREADA
for the year and attributable to BEAEWN
owners of the Company 19,000 11,049
Earnings/(loss) per share SREF, (FH#E) 12
— Basic and diluted —HAK#E HK$0.012 (HK$0.022)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R2021F12H31H
At 31 December 2021

2021 2020
20215 2020%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E THERT FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBDEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BMERZE 14 541,076 487,073
Investment property REYE 15 84,200 82,000
Payments for acquisition of properties UK BE ¥ % < 43K 34 - 1,134
Prepayments for acquisition of property, BB ¥ - M ER R &
plant and equipment ZFAARK 2,490 310
Goodwill G5k 16 9,486 9,486
Deferred tax asset EEBIEEE 23 311 137
637,563 580,140
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 18 106,647 83,687
Trade receivables FE U BR 30 19 29,904 23,584
Prepayments, deposits and other BNERER - EZER
receivables Hftb B W 5008 5,578 14,121
Amount due from ultimate holding LGS NIz
company 20 112 101
Amounts due from related companies  F&UX B83E A T FIE 20 257 229
Tax prepayment FAR B 1,223 1,254
Cash and cash equivalents HERZERREER 208,215 256,722
351,936 379,698
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables FE A BR 7k I L 4t PE S SR IE 21 42,143 30,108
Amount due to a related company FE{S BRE A R FIE 20 423 583
Lease liabilities HEEE 27 576 454
Current tax liabilities R IE & & 2,272 501
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 45414 | 31,646
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 306,522 348,052
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBAER
LIABILITIES 944,085 928,192
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20214128318

At 31 December 2021
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
e = FTEx THET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEME
Lease liabilities HEAR 27 690 405
Employee benefits EEER 22 19,424 18,996
Retention payable ERREE 21 4,510 3,339
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEARE 23 41,272 39,863
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 6589 | 62,603
NET ASSETS EEFHE 878,189 865,589
EQUITY Ex
Share capital i@ 24 32,000 32,000
Reserves H1E 846,189 833,589
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 878,189 865,589
On behalf of the Board of Directors REEEMm
Siu Paul Y. Shui Wai Mei
EiRE HmEX
Director Director
EE EE
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GEEEEEHR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2021F12831HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ADRBEARGRE
Property
Share Share Capital ~revaluation ~ Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
S
ERTRE  RHEE  EREKE  EMREE  ERXRE  REER At
(note 24)  (note 25(c)(i)) (note 25(c)(i) (note 25(c)(iii)) (note 25(c)iv)) (note 25(c)(vi))
(Wizk24) (HEE2S()))  (BrsE2s(o)  (REE25(i) (HEE25(c)v) (MFEE25(0)mi))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
TEn TR TR TiEn TiEn TiEn TEn
At 1 January 2020 2020%151R 32,000 57,099 (23,724) 222,348 5,410 571,007 864,140
Loss for the year FERR - - - - - (6,908) (6,908)
Exchange differences on BAERBERHEEL
translating foreign operations ERZE - - - - 15,980 - 15,980
Surplus on revaluation of EBAEFRAZEE
leasehold land and buildings 1HRERET RS
held for own use - - - 1977 - - 1,977
Total comprehensive income EE2ENEER
for the year - - - 1,977 15,980 (6,908) 11,049
Diidends pad (note 250) ~ BRRE(MED0) o o o o T K0 (5600
At 31 December 2020 and R2020E128318 K
1 January 2021 2021151718 32,000 57,099 (23,724) 224,325 21,390 554,499 865,589
Profit for the year FERA - - - - - 3,826 3,826
Exchange differences on BARBREREEL
translating foreign operations EXEE - - - - 5,819 - 5,819
Surplus on revaluation of EBAFRAZEE
leasehold land and buildings 1HREREFZER
held for own use - - - 9,355 - - 9,355
Total comprehensive income EE2ENEEE
for the year - - - 9,355 5819 3,826 19,000
Diidends pad (note 250) ~ BRREMED0) | R o o T - (640 (6400
At 31 December 2021 R2021%125318 32,000 57,099 (23,724) 233,680 21,209 551,925 878,189
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B ZE2021F12A31BIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
20214 20205
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff =t FER FET
Cash flows from operating activities EZ (B 2 HELHE
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense BREiADER], (EiE) 6,872 (4,064)
Adjustments for: THFE
Interest income FE WA 7 (1,055) (3,478)
Finance costs Bk &R 36 44
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment REMELLE
property (W), B8 15 (2,200) 15,800
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- - BRERREBZTE
equipment 8 12,642 9,054
Changes in expected credit loss on FEWBR TR 2
trade receivables BHEEEE 2% 8 (255) 396
Changes in expected credit loss on H th fE Uk BR 2% > FE 8
other receivables EEERYSE 8 (2,381) 2,381
Reversal for write-down of inventories 17 & i 5l &5 18 =] 3 8 (4,795) (17)
Operating profit before working RTEEBEEESRE 2
capital changes geERA 8,864 20,116
Increase in inventories FEE M (18,165) (4,050)
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEUR BRZX (3 h0) R A
receivables (6,065) 8,856
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, MR REREME
deposits and other receivables WERER A (35 hn) 11,158 (6,912)
Increase in amount due from ultimate MEWERAIZER AT
holding company FRIE BN (11) (10)
Increase in amounts due from related  F& YR B8 B 2\ 5 7% 78 £ 0
companies (28) (26)
Decrease in trade and other payables  FE{JBRFX K& H fib FE (S 7B
D (1,376) (388)
Increase/(decrease) in employee EEEREM OFL)
benefits 73 (784)
CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM H ¥ (8f) EE£2B¢
OPERATIONS (5,550) 16,802
Income tax paid E#FEHR (2,156) (8,031)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RKEXK (FH) E4z
operating activities ReFH (7,706) 8,771
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETH2HEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BEVE BERSEE
equipment (34,424) (86,847)
Prepayments for acquisition of BEYX BERSEE
property, plant and equipment ks RN (2,490) (310)
Payments for acquisition of properties U ¥) % = 4K - (1,134)
Interest received AL &IPS 976 3,140
Net cash used in investing activities REEZE B AR EFHE (35,938) (85,151)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2021F12831HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
20214 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FTERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHZRERE
ACTIVITIES 33
Dividends paid 2R E (6,400) (9,600)
(Repayment to)/advanced from (BB, B—’
a related party ) FNCIE- 53 (160) 60
Lease payments HEF (560) (480)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEB B A 2R L FHE (7.120) (10,020)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH B2 RZFRELER
EQUIVALENTS 2B R (50,764) (86,400)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHOzREREFRELER
beginning of year 256,722 333,776
Effect of foreign exchange rate HMEEZSHHRER
changes on cash and cash ZERSEAZTE
equivalents 2,257 9,346
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBEREEARLEAR
AT THE END OF YEAR
represented by bank balances and BRITHEGHRRS
cash 208,215 256,722
Note: Brat -

Bank balances and cash included an amount of approximately
HK$46,539,000 (2020: HK$52,707,000) which is denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"). Included in this amount is a sum of
approximately HK$11,835,000 (2020: HK$14,295,000) deposited
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). RMB is not a freely
convertible currency in the international market. The conversion
of RMB into foreign currency and remittance of RMB out of the
PRC are subject to the rules and regulations of exchange controls
promulgated by the PRC authorities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Datronix Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 15 February 2000 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). Its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 22 June 2001.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
manufacturing of electronic components in the PRC
and Vietnam and trading of electronic components to
customers in the United States of America (the “US"),
Hong Kong, and other countries. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the Group.

The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
The address of its principal place of business is 19th
Floor, North Point Industrial Building, 499 King's
Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding
company is Onboard Technology Limited ("Onboard
Technology"), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The Company’s ultimate controlling
party is Mr. Siu Paul Y.

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

—REH

BEMNBERERATA (EXQTD R
BEBEIGIFELQTL (BB K
20002 1SHEEERETSMALA
ERREREMELT  HIRMH 2001
FOANAEBRBERSZMERAT
(MEERFrl) £ o

ARA—BREZRAT AN B
AAAEREFEARKAME ([
B REREREEF iHRERESR
EFAMHEENRERE (X)) »
BEREREMEARZEF - ARARH
MEBARSRBAIAEE] -

78 A B) & M 3% =5 65 b ik R Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda > HF Z& ¥ ih By
REBILARBBEARIEATERE
1942 ©

KRR zEENGEREZER A A
AOnboard Technology Limited
(lOnboard Technology]) » — R %
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(a) Adoption of new/amended HKFRSs - (a) RNFE] BETEBUB
effective 1 January 2021 £ EH - H52021FE181H
R

2. RINERMBEBEEN

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") has issued a number
of new/amended HKFRSs that are first effective

BREAMASEATZRES
EEEHHRERNHMTREE
ANBEBMBREEL -

for the current accounting period of the Group:

Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent ERNEREEA 20198 ik
HKFRS 16 Concession F165% 2 B8 mERE
Eofiokika
B
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark BB ERE3% FIRERE

BRBBREER BE-
FA% - BRMBRE FIER
ERETH  BREMBRE
ERFORRBEBYBRE
EAIE165 2 BE

B2021F1B1HEM 2 HAMFHET
S RRIEET B B M ISR ERY A
EENSTRERLESEARSTE -

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, Reform — Phase 2
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 16

The new/amended HKFRSs that are effective
from 1 January 2021 did not have any significant
impact on the Group’s accounting policies.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") —

CONTINUED

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS Standards

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendment to
HKFRS 16

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework'

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?

Insurance Contracts?

Annual Improvements
to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020"

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
Before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract’

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 20214
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") -
CONTINUED
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective — Continued

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

s No mandatory effective date yet determined but is
available for early adoption

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2021

The Group is not yet in a position to state
whether these new pronouncements will result
in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it
refers to the revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 instead of the version
issued in 2010. The amendments add to HKFRS
3 a requirement that, for obligations within the
scope of HKAS 37, an acquirer applies HKAS 37
to determine whether at the acquisition date
a present obligation exists as a result of past
events. For a levy that would be within the scope
of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the
obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay
the levy has occurred by the acquisition date. The
amendments also add an explicit statement that
an acquirer does not recognise contingent assets
acquired in a business combination.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BiAERAMEREEN—F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") —
CONTINUED

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

(b) ERMEEKRERZHET

but are not yet effective — Continued

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 -
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where
there is a sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture.
When the transaction with an associate or joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity
method, any gains or losses resulting from the
loss of control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business are recognised in the profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in that associate or joint venture.
Similarly, any gains or losses resulting from the
remeasurement of retained interest in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a
joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

The new standard establishes the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of insurance contracts and
supersedes HKFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. The
standard outlines a ‘General Model’, which is
modified for insurance contracts with direct
participation features, described as the ‘Variable
Fee Approach’. The General Model is simplified if
certain criteria are met by measuring the liability
for remaining coverage using the Premium
Allocation Approach.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") -
CONTINUED

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective — Continued

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

e  HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit
a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by
its parent, based on the parent’'s date of
transition to HKFRSs.

e HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify
the fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability,
explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity or
the lender on other’s behalf are included.

e HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements
by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives that might arise because of
how lease incentives are illustrated in that
example.

e HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows
when measuring the fair value of a biological
asset using a present value technique.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BiAERAMEREEN—F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") —
CONTINUED

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

(b) ERMEEKRERZHET

but are not yet effective — Continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments clarify that the classification
of liabilities as current or non-current is based
on rights that are in existence at the end of the
reporting period, specify that classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
a liability and explain that rights are in existence
if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also
introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make
clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other
assets or services.

Amendments to HKAS 16 — Property, Plant
and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while
bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, the
proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of
producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

Amendments to HKAS 37 - Onerous
Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of
fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that
relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate
directly to a contract can either be incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct labour
and materials) or an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g.
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") -
CONTINUED
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective — Continued

Amendment to HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The amendment extends the time limit in one of
the qualifying criteria of the practical expedient
for Covid-19-related rent concessions from 30
June 2021 to 30 June 2022. As such, the use
of the practical expedient is available to more
rent concessions, in particular those involving
reduction in lease payments originally due after
30 June 2021 but before 30 June 2022.

A lessee is required to apply the amendments
retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment recognised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of equity
at the beginning of the annual reporting period.
Lessees that had elected to apply the practical
expedient in their previous financial statements
are required to apply the extension to eligible
contracts with similar characteristics and in similar
circumstances.

The Group is not yet in a position to state
whether these new pronouncements will result
in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “HKFRSs”) issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rule”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except
for certain leasehold land and buildings and
investment property, which are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). Each entity in the
Group maintains its books and records in its own
functional currency. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$. The board of
directors considered that it is more appropriate to
present the consolidated financial statements in
HK$ as the shares of the Company are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation — Continued

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from
the effective dates of acquisition or up to the
effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other non-controlling interests are measured at
fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation — Continued

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interest and the
non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest; and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of the
following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control
is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(c) Research and development costs

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

e it is technically feasible to develop the
product for it to be sold;

e adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

e there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

e the Group is able to sell the product;

e sale of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and

e expenditure on the project can be measured
reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from
selling the products developed. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and
included in cost of sales.

Development expenditure not satisfying the
above criteria and expenditure on the research
phase of internal projects are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4. FEEHBRE &
CONTINUED

(d) Goodwill (d) FE

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being
the excess of the aggregate of consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests over the fair value of
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceed the
fair value of consideration paid, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units
("CGUs") that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to
the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in
profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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n & B B R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong and
buildings in the PRC and Vietnam are stated
at valuation less accumulated depreciation.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair values at the
end of the reporting period. Increases in value
arising on revaluation are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of property revaluation
reserve. Decreases in value arising on revaluation
are first offset against increases on earlier
valuations in respect of the same property and
thereafter recognised in profit or loss. Any
subsequent increases are recognised in profit or
loss up to the amount previously charged and
thereafter to the property revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the
revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is released from the property
revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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R E TSR R MR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4. FEEHBRE &

CONTINUED

(e) Property, plant and equipment — Continued

(e) M%¥ -MERRE &

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
so as to write off their cost or valuation net of
expected residual value over their estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. The annual depreciation
rates are as follows:

Leasehold land and 4% to 4.5% or over the

M BERRBRERREMGET
ERFEHRERERERBERS
FEERGTRGEEZITER
MITE - REREHRE - A5
AERES  RREERFTER
ETUEHEAR (MES) - F
WERIRWT :

HE Lt 4%—-4 5% 1E

buildings lease terms, whichever REF EEEEHRR
is shorter (UREEARE)
Interests in leasehold ~ Over the lease terms REELH ZEEEAEHRK
land ZEH

Machinery and 15% to 30%
equipment
Furniture and fixtures  15%

Motor vehicles 18% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, the
cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are revised
annually.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction as well as borrowing costs
capitalised during the periods of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases
and the construction in progress is transferred
to the appropriate class of property, plant and
equipment when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended
use are completed. No depreciation is provided
for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and its carrying
amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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n & B B R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(f)

(9)

Investment property

Investment property is property held or right to
use asset held by the Group as a lessee either
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course
of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently at fair value with
any change therein recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the
goods or service may be transferred over time
or at a point in time. Control of the goods or
service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

e creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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R E TSR R MR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4. FEEHBRE &

CONTINUED

(g) Revenue recognition — Continued

(9) =R — &

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control
of the goods or service.

The Group is principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of electronic
components in both Hong Kong and overseas
market. Customers obtain control of the Group’s
products when the goods are delivered to and
have been accepted by customers. Revenue from
sale of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the assets is transferred to the
customers according to the terms of contracts.
Revenue is thus recognised when the products
are delivered and accepted by customers and
invoice is issued when the customers accepted
the products. There is generally only one
performance obligation and the consideration
includes no variable amount. Invoices are usually
payable ranging from 30 days to 90 days.

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.
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n & B B R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(9)

(h)

Revenue recognition — Continued
Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs
incurred to fulfil a contract when those costs
meet all of the following criteria:

(a) the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources
of the entity that will be used in satisfying
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised
to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of
the goods or services to which the cost relate.
The asset is subject to impairment review.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets (including property, plant
and equipment) are recognised as deferred
income in the statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(h) Government grant - Continued

()

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable and are
recognised as other revenue, rather than reducing
the related expense.

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity
to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are
short-term leases; and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease
term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed
on straight-line basis over the lease term.
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n & B B R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(i) Leasing - Continued

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property or a class of property,
plant and equipment to which the Group applies
the revaluation model, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model.
Under the cost model, the Group measures the
right-of-use asset at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
For right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, they are carried at fair
value and for right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of a leasehold land and buildings held
for own use, they are carried at fair value.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and
buildings that are held for rental or capital
appreciation purpose under HKAS 40 and are
carried at fair value. The Group accounts for
leasehold land and buildings which is held for
own use under HKAS 16 and are carried at fair
value. Other than the above right-of-use assets,
the Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group
exercises it judgment and determines that it is a
separate class of asset apart from the leasehold
land and buildings which is held for own use. As
a result, the right-of-use assets arising from the
properties under tenancy agreements are carried
at depreciated cost.
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R E TSR R MR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4. FEEHBRE &

CONTINUED

(i) Leasing - Continued

(i) HE-&

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable;
(i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease. Lease payments to be made
under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the lease
liability.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the
Group measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a
change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.
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n & B B R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

()

()

Leasing — Continued
Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property
to a tenant. Rental income from operating lease is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair value
plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at
the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(j) Financial instruments - Continued

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets — Continued
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. The Group
classifies its debt instruments including
trade and other receivables, amounts due
from ultimate holding company and related
companies, at amortised cost as follows:

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances
for expected credit loss (“ECL") on trade
receivables.

The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECL: these
are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECL: these
are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

CONTINUED

(j) Financial instruments - Continued

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets -

Continued

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to
receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group has measured loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECL. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating
ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A

4., FEERIBE -

() eMIA-&
(i) & @& E B R 78 — &

BHEEBERNEFEEBEN
MEMEMS - FEEBED
BREBEENENASEBEN AR

ERNRERBEAEEE
HUBMHWRERE 2B E
BB HERZHREER
ERMNEZNHEESHEBER -

REECEREFERET BB
HREZERNBIREETEE
SRWRENBRRE I
EREBREAPEESRE
ERBFEERE -AKED
RIBRNAKEBEFES
BERNBEER  XRE
BEEBANSENEERER

REBRFHE -

REEEREEFERRE
BB AL HER R KRB
mEEEFAREEEER
FEBEBRRTEREAHE
HWATRT ZEHEBE TSR
BETUEER  BERER
EEBEERREHAEERN
HEHNEERELER D
o ARATEMEER -

AEEBRR fM-—HTRE
EEHEIBE308 AIHEE
e KIEEM - BRIFAE
BEESERAXEENE
RS IF AN L

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 4 %R



wrE R R M R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(j) Financial instruments - Continued

(i)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets -
Continued

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (2) the financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default
criteria is more appropriate.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. The Group classifies
its financial liabilities at amortised cost which
are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(j) Financial instruments - Continued

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability,
or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expired or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4. FEEHBRE &

CONTINUED

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets

(k) FERMEENRE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following

AEBRSERSBRESERT
EEMNKREE  UHNBREER

assets to determine whether there is any BRBARZEEELERERS
indication that those assets have suffered and B BEBANWBEEBEES T
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously BEEISEFRRL :

recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

e property, plant and equipment, including

e ME -BMERRKREB BEE

right-of-use assets (other than property AEEE (WEREGEYIER
carried at revalued amounts); and BN R

e investments in subsidiaries (recognised in the
Company’s statement of financial position
(see note 29)).

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use)
of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
to the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under that HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

()

Employee benefits
(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when the services
are rendered by the employees.

(ii) Long service payments
The Group’s net obligations in respect of
long service payments are the amounts of
future benefits that employees have earned
in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, which will probably result
in an outflow of economic benefits that can be
reasonably estimated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(n)

(o)

Provisions and contingent liabilities -
Continued

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill
and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.
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n & B B R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(o) Income taxes — Continued

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 Investment Property. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax
amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income in which case the
taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 4. FEEHBRE &

CONTINUED
(p) Foreign currency (p) &

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at
the rates ruling when the transactions occur.
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(p) Foreign currency — Continued

On consolidation, income and expense items
of foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took
place are used. All assets and liabilities of
foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss
of Group entities’ separate financial statements
on the translation of long-term monetary items
forming part of the Group's net investment in the
foreign operation concerned are reclassified to
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative exchange differences recognised in
the exchange reserve relating to that operation
up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1
January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(q) Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 fE4F3R o

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
CONTINUED

(g) Related parties - Continued

(b) -

Continued

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
or

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

(a) Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies
(i) Current taxation and deferred taxation

Judgment is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the
timing of payment of the related taxation.
There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business.

5.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - CONTINUED

(a) Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies — Continued

(ii) Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency
transactions in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries. In determining the functional
currencies of the group entities, judgment
is required to determine the currency that
mainly influences sales prices for goods
and services and of the country whose
competitive forces and regulations mainly
determines the sales prices of its goods
and services. The functional currencies of
the group entities are determined based on
management’s assessment of the economic
environment in which the entities operate
and the entities’ process of determining sales
prices.

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, other key sources of
estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk
of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within next
financial year are as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - CONTINUED

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty -
Continued

(i)

(ii)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines
the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the deprecation
charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write
off or write down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value-in-use
of the CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value-in-use calculation
requires the directors to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.
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n & B B R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - CONTINUED

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty -
Continued

(iii) Estimated net realisable value of

inventories

The Group’s management writes down
slow-moving or obsolete inventories based
on an assessment of the net realisable value.
Inventory will be written down where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that
the net realisable value is less than cost.
The determination of net realisable value
requires the use of judgment and estimates
in inventory provision policy. Where the
expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact
carrying value of the inventories and lead
to a revision on the amount of inventories
written down in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. In making this
estimation, the Group evaluates the usage
and extent by all means to which the amount
will be recovered. During the year, certain
inventories written down in prior years have
been used and sold. The Group recognised
a reversal of write-down of inventory
of approximately HK$4,795,000 (2020:
HK$17,000) for the year.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A
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wrE R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. EERHAIER G AHBEA
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION THEEREF-—E
UNCERTAINTY - CONTINUED
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty — (b)) EREHEELETFTEEE 22X

Continued ERE-&
(iv) Fair value measurement (iv) X FEFE

A number of assets and liabilities included
in the Group’s financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair
value. The fair value measurement of the
Group’'s financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities utilises market observable
inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based
on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised are (the ‘fair
value hierarchy’):

e level 1: Quoted prices in active markets
for identical items (unadjusted);

e Level 2: Observable direct or indirect
inputs other than Level 1 inputs;

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not
derived from market data).

The classification of an item into the above
levels is based on the lowest level of the
inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are
recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures a number of items at
fair value:

e Revalued land and buildings — Property,
plant and equipment (note 14); and

e |nvestment property (note 15).

For more detailed information in relation

to the fair value measurement of the items
above, please refer to the applicable notes.

ZIEHINAEBH B RE
REEREBBEEERELELAF
BNER/REE - AEH
BRIV BEEEREREZ
AFEFEDRATHER
SEFHATSUBERERR
AREE REELQFES
ERFEAZEREA IR
B FTE A 2 & EH i A
WERBMAZABERZEM
PEATREBR(ATESE
&) -

o 1B :HRIEABERE
BHSHHRE (KRIEHA
),

o H2F: EEIIBETE
EMNENBA - TEE

FIBERTA
o E3E:EEBEMER

WA (NEEFRETER
B) e

BHEFRBANLARER 2
EREZIEE 2 X FEES
EEAEARFENRERER
ErmAE BEEEXRZ
BERER N L IR R -

AEBMEAFEFEZEN
A

e EfIHEEF - Y
¥ WmMERKE (K
14) s &

o REWE (MIEE15) °
BB LSEE 2 X FEES

ENESZHEER F2H
i BB RE ©
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n & B B R R M R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - CONTINUED

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty -
Continued

(v) Impairment of trade receivables

The Group recognised an ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix. The
Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment. If the financial
condition of the debtor were to deteriorate,
actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated. Details of the movements in
provision for impairment of trade receivables
are disclosed in note 19.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker that are used to make strategic
decisions.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing
and trading of electronic components in both Hong
Kong and overseas market. The Group’s chief
operating decision-maker regularly reviews the
consolidated financial information of the Group as a
whole to assess the performance and consider there is
only one operating segment for the Group.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION — CONTINUED
(a) Geographical information

The following table sets out the information
about the geographical location of the Group’s
revenue from external customers and non-current
assets other than financial instruments
("Specified non-current assets”).

The Group comprises the following main
geographical segments:

6.

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

PEEE—E

(a) HEER
TREINEBEAEBRBEIIDBE
FiHERFE 2 BN E 2B R
KREMIAEMNERBEE (18
EFRBEE]D ©

AEECEEHRBSFERMT ¢

Revenue from
contracts with Specified

external customers non-current assets

(by customers’ location) (by assets’ location)

HINHE EEXRRBEE

(RBEFNE) (REEENE)
2021 2020 2021 2020
202145 20204 20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T FExT FE& T

Hong Kong (place of B8 (REELERE

domicile) 2 77 i ith 2 ) 849 398 322,421 314,857
The PRC A 17,585 20,553 248,018 197,634
The US ESE| 210,198 194,303 11,765 11,394
Vietnam i - - 55,359 56,255
European Union B BEE B2 4,855 5,328 - =
Other countries HiB=x 10,114 10,224 - =
242,752 230,408 315,142 265,283
Total Faler) 243,601 230,806 637,563 580,140
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n & B B R R M R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - CONTINUED
(b) Disaggregated revenue information

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated
by major products and timing of revenue

SWBEHE—E
(b) ZABHEXKEEN
THRAP WARETEERMEA

AR D& -

recognition.
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
HK$'000 HK$000
THET FET
Major products FTEEmM
Electronic components i 243,601 230,806
Timing of revenue recognition W A i 52 B
At a point in time B 2 243,601 230,806

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by geographical markets is disclosed in
note 6(a) above.

The following table provides information about

L 5IFEE6(a) I B0 B iR it 32 . B
MO ENEFEHNLA -

T&RP BREHEERBEFEHN

trade receivables from contracts with customers: HEURBRREHL :
2021 2020
202145 20205
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T8 T
Trade receivables from sale of HEEEFTHELE
electronic components B9 FE Uk BR =X 29,904 23,584

Under HKFRS 15, advance receipts from
customers in respect of the Group's sale
contracts included in trade and other payables
shall be reclassified to contract liabilities. The
Group considers the amount of advance receipts
from customers is immaterial to the financial
statements and therefore the amount is not
separately disclosed as contract liabilities.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A

REEBUHRELERE 155
EZRAMEBNREFEEHE
EANELENHAREFREKE
HOBRENEBE FEERA
EFHNRBREHMBRERRE
EXAFE AUZSBRIKRER
REREWAEE-
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wrE R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - CONTINUED 6. PEBEH—&

(c) Information about major customers (c) EEEZTEEZFREHR
Revenue from contract with external customers of RIBEFE  REIXEFFZE
the corresponding years contributing over 10% HRBEREFZE—K&F
of the total revenue of the Group are as follows: BHESEF TH 2R ABLER

10% » #E1B0TF -

2021 2020
2021% 2020%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
Customer A =FH 56,184 56,719
Customer B EFZ 45,258 41,673
Customer C Z2FER 39,682 34,111
141,124 132,503
7. OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS 7. Rl A
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Bank interest income RITH B WA 1,055 3,478
Changes in expected credit loss on trade EWRBZFEHEERE
receivables A 255 -
Changes in expected credit loss on other H#hfEWFIE 2 FEHEEEE
receivables A 2,381 —
Rental income under operating lease EEHETZ2HEWA 1,176 3,100
Exchange gain, net BE R U - TBEE 181 1,530
Government grants (note) BUAT 78 Bh (R =) 70 4,391
Sundry income Hiplg A 386 292
5,504 12,791
Note: it -
Included in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December BZE2021F12A31HLFEE  BxhEE
2020 was HK$3,929,000 of government grants obtained ERBNTHREBRNASZEASREE I
from Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the SMEHNERERERES THRMETE
Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR (MR ZEFTE D) R AW BURFHBI3,929,000
Government supporting the payroll of the Group's BT MIBRMEFT &8 AEBE L EEGE
employees. Under the ESS, the Group had to commit to BELHBEARFEXE  WEERE
spend these grants on payroll expenses, and not reduce IFHIRTREEE T AZE D 2R EKF L
employee head count below prescribed levels for a specified TeAREBRBELTEEBMABITHN
period of time. The Group did not have other unfulfilled HinFE7

obligations relating to this program.
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n & B B R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

7.

OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS -

CONTINUED

Note: — Continued

In addition, HK$70,000 (2020: HK$462,000) of government
grants is related to subsidy for the purpose of giving cash
incentives for entity to recruit employees with disability.
The scheme is launched by the government of the PRC.
The amount granted depends on the ratio of employees

7. iy A — &

Kt - —4&

teoh HBEM2EMNARERARERS
RERSEFH2HEE £ % 570,000/ T
(2020%F : 462,000 t) ° Z&T S HHEH
BFEE - BRI S EEURNE AN EER
EEMEEH - REBEREHEKEEREM

with disability recruited. The Group does not have other RETHEMBRT -
unfulfilled obligations relating to this program.
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. FrMAAT (HE\)
EXPENSE
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense is arrived at BRBEAEFR S (BE) SR (5
after charging/(crediting): A) -
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFEZREE 162,987 150,932
Reversal for write-down of inventories 17 & MR 5 18 =] 38 (4,795) (17)
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses T2 5B X M 1F & K A& 158,192 150,915
Auditor’s remuneration % Eil e 830 830
Depreciation charge of: mERX :
— owned property, plant and equipment —-BEYW% BEKRE 6,516 4,301
— right-of-use assets included within - FRAEEE 8RN
— ownership interests in leasehold - RAFEIERESR
land and buildings held for own fEERZHEEL
use carried at fair value WRYEZRE
RS 4,840 3,554
— ownership interests in leasehold — BRI REFEE
land held for own use carried at fEERZHEE
cost T FTEEED 757 751
— other properties leased for own — RS BRE AL
use carried at cost BERZEEY* 529 448
Changes in expected credit loss on trade EWFHEFBHEEEIE
receivables ZEH) (255) 396
Changes in expected credit loss on other HttfEWHKB 2 BHEE
receivables E518 2 (2,381) 2,381
Research and development expenditure  FZERBFERE M 4,818 4,111
Direct operating expense arising from REERELEHS KA
investment property that generated NWIREVMEHEEERS
rental income during the year 444 464
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2021412HA31H

31 December 2021
9. STAFF COSTS 9. REIR=E
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THET
Staff costs (including directors’ (=5
remuneration as set out in note 13) (BREEEMEE2TRN
comprise: Miak13) B4 -
Wages and salaries TERFS 102,915 91,196
Contributions to defined contribution TE &8 i FOR IR 5T &) 2 =X
retirement plan 7,422 1,959
110,337 93,155

The staff costs included an amount of HK$4,389,000
(2020: HK$3,728,000) which is classified as research

10.

B T B A8 $E4,389,00058 7t (2020
£ : 3,728,000/ J5) B AW KB

and development expenditure. ZEH o
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. R H
2021 2020
20214 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BB IE — BB FEH
— Provision for the year - REERE 1,139 343
— Over provision in respect of - BAFERBZIR
prior years (111) (55)
1,028 288
Current tax — overseas B EA B 18 — g b
— Provision for the year - AREERE 2,853 3,116
— Under provision in respect of - BEFERBIRE
prior years 142 22
2,995 3,138
Deferred tax credit (note 23) EEBIEE R (MEE23) (977) (582)
3,046 2,844
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n & B B R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE - CONTINUED

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of
16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong, except for the first
HK$2,000,000 of qualified entity’s assessable profit is
calculated at 8.25%, which is in accordance with the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime.

The PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% (2020: 25%).

The US subsidiaries are subject to US Federal
Corporate Income Tax at 21% (2020: 21%).

The Vietnam subsidiary is subject to Vietnam
Corporate Income Tax at 20% (2020: 20%). No
provision for Vietnam Corporate Income Tax has been
made as the Vietnam subsidiary has no assessable
profits for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A

10. AR R — &

BRFSHMAENEE  5EKE
B2V E2,000,00078 Jt FERR B i A A 12
8.25% & H I HEERBH 25T
FER R R A IR E16.5%T & (2020
£ :16.5%) o

ERE A 2B L EBNIE25%
(2020 : 25%) B RFTE 2P E A
BEFEH -

REBEZ2HEB LA BEHBMNIR21%
(2020 : 21%) B RFTE 2 BB FB
BEFEH -

MRz BARFEMMN20% (20204 :
20%) MM EEMEH - HREREZ
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B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE — CONTINUED

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the profit/(loss) before income tax expense per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

10. AR R — &

FERSHAXERBEERERE
e 2 ERER ZBRBANER, (BE)
HIRWT :

2021 2020
2021% 2020%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) before income tax expense  BRELATEF, (E5E) 6,872 (4,064)
Effect of tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ R&BEBABH E16.5% &
rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) ZHIESE
(2020%F : 16.5%) 1,134 (671)
Effect of different tax rates of MEBARREMBEZERERE
subsidiaries operating in other ZREBEZ
jurisdictions 37 171
Tax effect of revenue not taxable BARBTRAZHRESZE
for tax purposes (1,475) (2,333)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R EWRE ZFHIBEE 2,784 2,145
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FERAUARERIAZHIERSE
recognised (117) (5)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FHNBEX 2 HEBELE
for tax purposes 652 3,570
Under/(over) provision in respect BEFEREBELR (ZR)
of prior years 31 (33)
Income tax expense FriS B % 3,046 2,844

In addition to the amount charged to the profit or
loss, deferred tax relating to the revaluation of the
Group’s certain leasehold land and buildings for
own use during the year has been charged to other
comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$24,987,000
(2020: HK$11,263,000) which were available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the estimated tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Tax losses of approximately HK$5,295,000 (2020:
HK$3,073,000) have no expiry date and approximately
HK$19,692,000 (2020: HK$8,190,000) are subject to
expiry period of five years.

BRTYHRANEENESREIN EEEE
fEERZHEEL ANEF 2 S HE
ZEEHE  ERAFEASREAM
RE W AR o

2021128318 REB AR
B AR IEE B 4 524,987,000% T
(20204 : 11,263,000/ 75) @ H Al
IR RF o HRKRRFBERI T
ATFERIME R BRI IEE
BREIATMELEHEEE - BIEEE
#95,295,00058 T (20204 : 3,073,000
BT) AEER > M#919,692,000& 7T
(2020% : 8,190,000 Jt) WY HR PR A5
$ °
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n & B B R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

11. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

M. Eth2mE S

Tax effects relating to each component of other

comprehensive income:

Htt2E RS S ARG 2 BIERE

2021 2020
20215 20205
Increase in Increase in
Before-  deferred Net-of- Before-  deferred Net-of-
tax tax tax tax tax tax
amount liabilities  amount amount liabilities amount
EERE R IE
BREABE SEEN BWEFE RUAHE 868N HEFE
(note 23) (note 23)
(H&E23) (Ff&E23)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT THET THET THERT
Exchange differences BIEBBRERELEZ
on translating foreign ERELD
operations 5,819 - 5,819 15,980 - 15,980
Surplus on revaluation EftEFERAZEE
of leasehold land and TR BEREFZ
buildings held ke
for own use 11,567 (2,212) 9,355 2,760 (783) 1,977
17,386 (2,212) 15,174 18,740 (783) 17,957
12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12.8BEBF (HR)
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is SREARF,(FHE) DETHEE
based on the following data: TE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners RABFER AENG
of the Company wmAL(B5E) 3,826 (6,908)
Number of shares
% & B
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
Number of ordinary shares in issue ERTEEREE 320,000,000 | 320,000,000

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the same as basic
earnings/(loss) per share as there were no potential
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both years.

B A £ W | BE SR 3 A 3 B F I A

EHERE

ZEBRR HEREER

MOBBR)SRAREREXRER

(B518) °
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Details of the directors' remuneration are set

oA R R M A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

1B EEHERSEBFALRE
BEEZRNS

(a) EEHMEFIBERIIKMT

out below:
Year ended 31 December 2021
HZ2021F128318
Basic Contributions
salaries, to defined
allowance  contribution
and other retirement
Fees benefits plan Total
EXx%Fe - EHEBEX
ERR RNGHE
ik HitER R CEi
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TER
Executive directors HTES
Siu Paul Y. (Chairman) ARE(XF) - 7,690 - 7,690
Shui Wai Mei #hEX - 650 - 650
Sheung Shing Fai LS - 1,650 - 1,650
Siu Nina Margaret REW - 1,540 18 1,558
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Chung Pui Lam MM 125 - - 125
Lee Kit Wah P 125 - - 125
Wong Wah Sang, Derek BEEL 80 - - 80
330 11,530 18 11,878
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS — CONTINUED

(a) Details of the directors' remuneration are set

wEEEMS - &

B.EEMERSBEFALES

() EENMESFHHRI KW

out below: - Continued ~: —&
Year ended 31 December 2020
BZ=2020F128318
Basic  Contributions
salaries, to defined
allowance contribution
and other retirement
Fees benefits plan Total
EXEE EHEHEX
2R RIRGHE
ne Hit g7 2R CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TER
Executive directors HTES
Siu Paul Y. (Chairman) BRE(XF) - 7,690 - 7,690
Shui Wai Mei #hEx - 650 - 650
Sheung Shing Fai AR e - 1,650 = 1,650
Siu Nina Margaret RED - 1,525 18 1,543
Independent non-executive BIYFHTES
directors
Chung Pui Lam MM 125 - - 125
Lee Kit Wah THE 125 - - 125
Wong Wah Sang, Derek HEL 80 - - 80
330 11,515 18 11,863

No directors waived any remuneration during the
year. No incentive payment or compensation for
loss of office was paid or payable to any directors
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
Nil).

Basic salaries, allowance and other benefits
paid to or payable to the executive directors
are generally emoluments paid or payable in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

RAEER WESMNESHE
REEREEMEE - B ZE2021
F12A31BLFER  AEEL
BREMEEZAEME ARSIE
EMAXREBEAMAREEN
5B 1 (202045 1 BB T) o

EXx#HE RURHMEIEX
NEEEXNTFHITES 2
EBEARRARAMBERRANER
A A & S A AV o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS — CONTINUED

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, four (2020: four) were
directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note 13(a) above.
The emoluments of the remaining one (2020:
one) individual were as follows:

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

B.EEMERSBEFALERS
REHEME — &

(b) &S B E B A £

S5EReMEREBALHBEIELIS
RATESE (20205F : 48) » &
RATEEMMEE H A Rz
13(a) o HE&17 (20205 : 18) &
SMEALTHBESEESHINNT

2021 2020

20215 20205

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THET

Salaries and other benefits HeERHEMBER 845 768
Contributions to defined TEREH TR IRET 8l 2 X

contribution retirement plan 18 18

863 786

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the
five highest paid individuals (including directors
and other employees) as inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

The emoluments paid or payable to members
of senior management excluding directors were

REAFE  AEELEGQEMSE
REFER AL S EMTHMEE
BESIMARMARNEENRE
SR E o

EXNEEEXNTEREER
RENME  HBESEN U T

within the following band:

EARAR:

Number of employees

BIZH
2021 2020
20216 20205
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 3 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.9% BERBEMR

149

Ownership
interests in
leasehold  Ownership
land and interests in Other
buildings  leasehold  properties
held for  land held leased
ownuse  forown  forown Machinery  Furniture
carried at  use carried use carried Construction and and Motor
fair value at cost atcost inprogress equipment  fixtures  vehicles Total
BAYES
BREEE  ERANE
RzB&r HEEER RALRIE
WRMEe ZBELH HitERZ
FREEE ZFEEE HENE HEIR HERRE GARZE hE ait
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn TEn TEL TiEn TEn TEL TiEn TEn
Cost or valuation AT AE
At 1 January 2020 R20205181H 257,637 33,278 1,688 65,133 38,520 28,442 7438 432,136
Additions hE 35,265 - - 82,341 6,395 168 70 124,239
Disposals HeE - - - - (526) 8) - (534)
Transfers &% 30,220 - - (35,613) 4,635 758 - -
Deficit on revaluation EftFR (1,967) - - - - - - (1,967)
Exchange adjustment ERAE 4,234 1,355 - 2,120 382 243 55 8,389
At 31 December 2020 and 12020128318 R
1 January 2021 201E1818 325,389 34,633 1,688 113,981 49 406 29,603 7,563 562,263
Additions hE 1,570 - 931 43,914 2423 517 860 50,215
Disposals e - - - - (186) 77 (968) (1,925)
Transfers €% - = - (293) 293 = = =
Surplus on revaluation EffBR 4379 - - - - - - 4379
Exchange adjustment ] 1,659 497 - 2,735 146 89 20 5,146
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12A318 332,997 35,130 2,619 160,337 52,082 29,438 1475 620,078
Accumulated depreciation Z:f17E
At 1 January 2020 R202051818 - 3,937 405 - 34,240 25,752 6,332 70,666
Charge for the year REENE 4,721 751 448 - 2,118 517 493 9,054
Disposals 5 - = = = (526) 8) = (534)
Written back on revaluation B f54[m (4.727) = = = = = = (4727)
Exchange adjustment e - 283 - - 277 140 31 731
At 31 December 2020 and 120206128310 R
1 January 2021 02151818 - 4,971 853 - 36,109 26,401 6,856 75,190
Charge for the year KEERE 7,188 757 529 - 2,754 924 290 1264
Disposals 5 - - - - (186) (771) (968) (1,925)
Written back on revaluation B fk e (7,189) = - = = - = (7,188)
Exchange adjustment EiRE - 109 - - 110 52 12 283
At 31 December 2021 R20215128318 - 5,837 1,382 - 38,787 26,606 6,390 79,002
Carrying amount REFE
At 31 December 2021 R20215128318 332,997 29,293 1237 160,337 13,295 2,832 1,085 541,076
At 31 December 2020 R2020512R318 325,389 29,662 835 113,981 13,297 3,202 107 487,073

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 14.9%  BERBE— &

CONTINUED
Ownership
interests in
leasehold ~ Ownership
land and interests in Other
buildings  leasehold  properties
held for  land held leased
ownuse  forown  forown Machinery  Furniture
carried at  use carried use carried Construction and and Motor
fair value at cost atcost inprogress equipment fixtures  vehicles Total
BAYES
BREFE  BAANE
RzBgr HEEER RARIE
WRMEe ZBELH HiERZ
FREEE ZFEEE HENE HEIR HERRE GAREE RE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn Tian T T Tin T T Tin
Representing; i:
2021 WNE
At cost R - 35,130 2,619 160,337 52,082 29,438 1475 287,081
At valuation RiGE 332,997 = = = = - - 332,997
332,997 35,130 2,619 160,337 52,082 29,438 1475 620,078
2020 2020F
At cost BRHE - 34,633 1688 113,981 49,406 29,603 7563 236,874
At valuation REE 325,389 - - - - - - 325389
325,389 34633 1,688 113,981 49,406 29,603 7,563 562,263

The leasehold land and buildings held by the Group
for own use located in Hong Kong and the PRC were
valued at 31 December 2021 by qualified valuers
from Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of
chartered surveyors. The valuations were carried out
in accordance with guidance set by the HKIS Valuation
Standards (2020 Edition) published by The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

The buildings held by the Group for own use located
in Vietnam were valued at 31 December 2021 by
qualified valuers from Viet Nam Valuation and
Consulting Joint Stock Company, an independent
firm of chartered surveyors. The valuations were
carried out in accordance with guidance set by the
International Valuation Standards 2020 published by
the International Valuation Standards Council.

AEEFEEUREBRFTEBEAZHA
EtHEREFIHBUEGERMGE
MAEEEENTERBARLAAE P R
202112831 RETHE - ZFHET
ENRIBEREBIEMESHRNE
BRI ERMEBEEYEMLELER2020M M
1ESIELT -

AEBRFEEURBEEERZEF
DTHBYEERMGERMViet Nam
Valuation and Consulting Joint Stock
Company * R2021%F 12831 B# T4
B o Z A E TETIRE B BTG
Bl & 85 M BB (L E 2 R12020/9 38
SI#EAT °
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n & B B R R M R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

CONTINUED

The revaluation surplus/(deficit) net of applicable
deferred income taxes was credited/(debited) to

property revaluation reserve.

The following table analyses the leasehold land and

buildings by valuation method:

Fair value hierarchy

14.9%  BERXRE-&

ERES (BR)NKRERELHRSE
BT GIRR) M E L fE B -

HELRBFRAEBEIMMTR:

RFEER

Fair value measurements
using significant
unobservable inputs

(Level 3)
ATEHAEFEREESEE
BRNERB A (E38)
31 December | 31 December
2021 2020
M2021%F 20205
12H31H8 12831H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT
Recurring fair value measurement REMQFETE
Property, plant and equipment: ME -~ BERRE :
Leasehold land and buildings in UREBZHELIHRETF
Hong Kong 233,300 228,700
Buildings in the PRC YRHPEzZETF 69,593 67,194
Buildings in Vietnam NRBEEZEF 30,104 29,495
332,997 325,389

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer. There were no transfers between

Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

151 DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EZRHEIERAERAT o

AEBNBRRERERSHEER
ZEERZA BREBEARBHLQF
EHERBR  -REEAR  WRANE1
B F2BRFIB2EHNER -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
CONTINUED

The fair value of leasehold land and buildings is a level
3 recurring fair value measurement using significant
unobservable inputs. A reconciliation of the opening
and closing fair value balance is provided below.

wrE R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

149K  BERXRE-&

HELHREFHNAFEEREE M
NP EFERERELEENENR
AFIBE3E - HAKMROAFES
ERAVFEEI R EMR T3 »

Leasehold
land and
buildings in Buildings Buildings
Hong Kong  in the PRC in Vietnam Total
UREREZ
HE L LA FE R B
REF ZEF ZEF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT THER THER
At 1 January 2020 12020£181H 233,300 24,337 - 257,637
Additions "B - 35,265 - 35,265
Transfer from construction in ERIREA

progress = = 30,220 30,220
Depreciation charge on EfEEEER

revaluation of properties ZMEZITE

held for own use (3,287) (349) (1,091) (4,727)
Unrealised (losses)/gains included B3R H b2 H &

in other comprehensive income  Z K8 (F#E) /i H (1,313) 3,707 366 2,760
Exchange adjustment [E 5 = 4,234 = 4,234
At 31 December 2020 and M2020F12A318 &

1 January 2021 202151818 228,700 67,194 29,495 325,389
Additions nE - - 1,570 1,570
Depreciation charge on BEMBEEERZ

revaluation of properties held ~ #¥EZFE

for own use (3,242) (2,720) (1,226) (7,188)
Unrealised gains included in BERHEMEEKSZ 2

other comprehensive income RE B W& 7,842 3,460 265 11,567
Exchange adjustment BEHAE - 1,659 - 1,659
At 31 December 2021 120215128311 233,300 69,593 30,104 332,997
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n & B B R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

CONTINUED

For leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong,
the valuations were determined using market
comparison approach. The fair value of leasehold land
and buildings is based on prices for recent market
transactions in similar properties and adjusted to
reflect the conditions and locations of the Group’s
properties. The significant input into this valuation
approach is price per square feet, which has been
adjusted to reflect the time of transaction, location,
size, level and age of property, site view and building
quality.

For buildings in the PRC, the valuations were
determined using depreciated replacement cost
approach and market comparison approach. For
the depreciated replacement cost, the fair value of
buildings is based on estimation of new replacement
cost of the buildings and other site works of which
adjustments are then made to account for age,
condition, and functional obsolescence, while taking
into account the site formation cost and those public
utilities connection charges to the properties. These
adjustments are based on unobservable inputs. The
key inputs are estimated cost of construction per
square meter and age adjustment on the cost of
buildings. For the market comparison approach, the
fair value of leasehold land and buildings is based
on prices for recent market transactions in similar
properties and adjusted to reflect the conditions and
locations of the Group's properties. The significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square
feet, which has been adjusted to reflect the location,
size, level and age of property.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A

14. 9% - BE KRR — &

UREBcHELTHRET  HERK
AmSLEERE HELHRET
MRFERRELB TSRS HEL
MENERILFEHARE  URRAEE
ERYEFENMLE REZEBAZX
HEFERUBFHIRER  EFE
ABRROCRMRXZNERE LEUR
MEZHEE BE B SENE

S W REE =
HYEE o

URFREZBTF  HERBEEXRAE
ERTSHEEERE REBEXAE
o BFNAFERRBEEZFHMGE
HHMEERAREMBTREFEL
fhet  WEEEE - RFREBEMER
B URBBIPERAARARQAMBREE
BRERNMATHEEREINEE - &
LRABRERBEIEENERNBAA -
FERNERBARMLT ZBFH XN
BERREBRENRBFTRANHE - 2
MISLLBE  HELTHREFHLF
ERRBEMTERZ DALY EN
BRIFHBARE  URRAEENY
ERANUE RBEZERAZMGES
ERUBFHRER  ERERARER
ERMUBUARYE 2EE - BEMN
BHE -
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wrE R R M R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

CONTINUED

For buildings in Vietnam, the valuation was
determined using depreciated replacement cost
approach and market comparison approach. For
the depreciated replacement cost, the fair value of
buildings is based on estimation of new replacement
cost of the buildings and other site works of which
adjustments are then made to account for age,
condition, and functional obsolescence, while taking
into account the site formation cost and those public
utilities connection charges to the properties. These
adjustments are based on unobservable inputs. The
key inputs are estimated cost of construction per
square meter and age adjustment on the cost of
buildings. For the market comparison approach, the
fair value of leasehold land and buildings is based
on prices for recent market transactions in similar
properties and adjusted to reflect the conditions and
locations of the Group's properties. The significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square
feet, which has been adjusted to reflect the location,
size and level of property.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is provided
below.

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

149K  BERXRE-&

URBEz2BF HERBEEXRE
ERTNSHLEERE REBERAE
o BFNAFERRBEEZFHMGS
HMEERAREMBTREFEL
fhesr WEEEE - RFREBEMER
B URBBYIERAARABREE
BRERNMATHEEREINEERE - &
LRABRRERBEIEENERNBAA -
FERNERBARMLT ZBFH KN
BERREBRENRBFRANHE - &
MSLLEBE  HELTHREFHLQF
ERRBENTERZDECYEN
BRLFEHFARE  URRAEENY
ERANUE RBEERAZMGES
ERUNBFHRER  ERERARER
ERMUBURYEZEE B -

FRAERENELZBENERBA (5
3E) AP EFEEMIHN T -
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n & B B R R M R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

CONTINUED
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2021
20215128318
ik ZAYHE
Leasehold land and HK$233,300,000
buildings in (2020: HK$228,700,000)
Hong Kong 233,300,000%
UREEZEELH (2020%
REF 228,700,007 )
Buildings in the PRC HK$30,087,000
fIRPE 28T (2020: HK$28,639,000)
30,087,000 7
(2020 :
28,639,000 1)
Buildings in the PRC HK$39,506,000 (2020:
URPEZET HK$38,555,000)
39,506,000/ 1t
(2020% :
38,555,000/ 7t)
Buildings in the HK$28,793,000 (2020:
Vietnam HK$29,495,000)
UREEZET 28,793,000/ 1t
(2020% :
29,495,0007 7t)

Buildings in the HK$1,311,000

Vietnam (2020: Nil)
URHEZET 1,311,000 7
(2020 : &)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques

during the year.

The fair value measurements are based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ

from their actual use.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED Z#ZZERHTIEREMRAT o

Valuation
technique (s)

fhERE

Market comparison
approach
L 1493

Depreciated
replacement cost
approach

EEALE

Market comparison
approach

st Bk

Depreciated
replacement cost
approach

EERAE

Marketing comparison Floor adjustment factor

approach

LR

Range of

unobservable

Significant inputs (probability-
unobservable inputs weighted average)
EXEBEBEN

EXEBEBEN ERBANEE
EREA (BEmETS)
Age of property factor (2.8%)-(1.4%)
(2020: (2.2%)-2.4%)

(2.8%)-(1.4%)

BRRZ (2020 :
(2.2%)-2.4%)

Quality factor 0% (2020: 0%)

EERZ 0% (2020% : 0%)
Time of transaction factor 0%-1.3%
(2020: 0%-1.9%)

0%-1.3%

REEERZ (2020% : 0%-1.9%)

Age adjustment on the cost 77% (2020: 85%)
of buildings, taking into
account the remaining
useful life of buildings

BRUNEFRINAR
REBEFZHTH
RREH

77% (2020 : 85%)

54% (2020: 38%)
54% (2020 : 38%)

Floor adjustment factor

BEIERZ

93%-99%
(2020: 96%-98%)

Age adjustment on the cost
of buildings, taking into
account the remaining
useful life of buildings

ERUNERRANAR 93%-99%
REBEFZBTH (2020% : 96%-98%)
fEREH

90%-100%
(2020: Nil
EERERZ 90%-100%

(2020 : &)

14.9%  BERXRE-&

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value

ErBREAN
ATERE

Lower age, higher quality
and transaction dates
close to valuation
date will result in
correspondingly higher
fair value

BENER BENEE
REZEAEADNR
FABKEHRERS
WAFME-

Lower age of buildings
will result in
correspondingly higher
fair value

RENBREEIRER
EHATE:

Lower floor will result in
higher fair value

REREESAREND
%6

Lower age of buildings
will result in
correspondingly higher
fair value

RENEREEIRER
BNATHE

Midale floor will result in
higher fair value

hERERABEEND
¥E-

REERRBEREBMEENTE -

NFPEFERERLAYENTES R
REFEM  RERFERREARRE -
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wrE R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 14.9% BERSRE—&
CONTINUED
Had the Group's leasehold land and buildings been MAEEzHEL HEEFIRAK
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the BEREFINESTE  AIAKEHEL
carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land REFN2021F12A31B ZRE
and buildings as at 31 December 2021 would BEFEX A77,457,000/ Jt (20204
have been approximately HK$77,457,000 (2020: 79,259,000/8 J0) °

HK$79,259,000).

Right-of-use assets FSHEEE
The analysis of the carrying amount of right-of-use REEHEINEREEERABED T
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: W
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$'000 HK$000
FERT FHET
Ownership interests in leasehold land and #& 2 F & RIFE/EE B
buildings, carried at fair value, with ZHEE LR YE B RE
remaining lease terms of: m BRTHEHS
— Between 10 and 50 years — 105 &50%F 40,817 38,555
— Over 50 years — 50 B & 233,300 228,700
274,117 267,255
Ownership interests in leasehold land,  RIFERAFIRISEIES A
carried at depreciated cost, with ZHE T FiERERER
remaining lease terms of between BRTHEHAI10FEES0F
10 and 50 years 29,293 29,662
Other properties leased for own use, RITERASREME A
carried at depreciated cost ZHEEYHE 1,237 835
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n & B B R R M R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15. 1 5SM=E
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THExT
Fair value N E
At 1 January B1B1H 82,000 97,800
Change in fair value NEERE 2,200 (15,800)
At 31 December M12831H 84,200 82,000

The investment property of the Group is held under
long-term leases in Hong Kong.

There was no deferred tax for the fair value change of
investment property located in Hong Kong as capital
gain tax on sale of the investment property is not
applicable in Hong Kong and the deferred tax for the
fair value change of investment property is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 4(0).

The investment property held by the Group was
valued by qualified valuers from Asset Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of chartered surveyors.
The valuation was carried out in accordance with
guidance set by the HKIS Valuation Standards (2020
Edition) published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer. There were no transfers between
Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

The valuation was determined using a market
comparison approach. The fair value is based on
the prices for recent market transactions in similar
properties and adjusted to reflect the condition and
location of the Group’'s investment property. The
significant input of this valuation approach is price per
square feet, which has been adjusted to reflect the
time of transaction, location, size, level and age of the
property, site view and building quality.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A

AEEZREMEURPANES -

HAHELREBNRENENESR
WEBRTERARNE B - WIL B AR
EENRENVENAFEEDELE
ERIE  MREVENQIFEZFE
FERIH BZ M 40T B S R R
o

FEEFACRENEDHABYRE
BEEMPAEZEETEEBRERA
BEITE - ZEEIEDRE RS
EERAEMBSHRNEBRSAME
Y EGERER2020M K IEEIEAT ©

AEBNBRRRERERSHRER
ZHFERZA BREAREBHQY
BEERBER - NEER  WRANE1
B F2BRFIB2EMNER -

HERATSLBERE - A FER
REBOHTERZ PREUMENER
WEHBRE URRAEENREY
ERANUE RBEZERAZMGES
ERUNBFHARER  ERERARER
ERMRRZNERE - VEURYEZ
HE -BE B& SBENEZENE

=
L=l ©
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - CONTINUED

Information about fair value measurement using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is provided

wrE R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. 8 TVWE-&E
FREAEAELBENERNEA (5
3B)AFEHEBERHER T -

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

below.
Range of
unobservable Relationship of
Fair value at  Valuation Significant inputs (probability- unobservable
Description 31 December 2021  technique unobservable inputs weighted average) inputs to fair value
EXBEERN
R2021512A318 EHBANEER ELBERAA
Bt ZRYE  EENE EXAEEERNENBA (HEmEYY) ATERE
Investment property HK$84,200,000  Market comparison  Floor adjustment factor 1.5%-3.5%  Higher floor will result in
in Hong Kong (2020: HK$82,000,000) approach (2020: (9%)-2%)  correspondingly higher
REE 2 RENE 84,200,000 WIELBE fair value.
(2020% : RERZAZ 15%-35% BENEEREHRHE
82,000,000% 1t) (2020 : (9%)-2%) EHATE-
Location adjustment factor 0% (2020: 0%) Higher rate of location
WERZRAE 0% (2020% : 0%)  adjustment will result in
correspondingly higher
fair value.
SHRHBBNATE
There were no changes to the valuation methodology REERBEREEENSE -

during the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above
property’s highest and best use, which does not differ
from its actual use.

RFEFEBERENRLAVENTES K
RIEEH  REBERARETE -
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n & B B R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

16. GOODWILL

Gross and net carrying amount SR E
At 1 January and 31 December

MR1A1ER12A31H

16. 75 &

2021 2020
20215 20208
HK$"000 HK$'000
FTET TB T
9,486 9,486

Impairment testing of CGU containing goodwiill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to the single CGU identified, the magnetic
components production.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined from value-in-use calculation based on
cash flow projections formally approved budget
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 0% (2020: 0%),
which does not exceed the long-term growth rate for
the magnetic component production industry. The
cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of
18% (2020: 20%). The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the CGU. The
growth rates within the five-year period is 2% (2020:
0% to 2%)).

Based on result of the impairment testing, no
impairment loss has been recognised since initial
recognition of goodwill.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A

BEeHBZRSLEEENUNRE
A

FBERAIMS  BHEC WA
EmEE TR zE-RELEEE

fi o

RBeEEBENzTRE£ERREE
AMEBE-FH2HEMBSEZR
SREFBRAAE - SFUINERS
o BERGETMEFRIIEBRERO%
(20206 : 0%) 1FHEE - MZETGR
BHMMEREETENRERE -
ReRBREAFTEERH18% (2020 :
20%) EE - FRZITEXRAFA
RRMREARE S ZEMSFENRER -
SER R EE2% (2020F : 0% E
2%) °

ERBERAINGR BREIFE
WRBREFERER
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17. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the particulars of all
subsidiaries of the Group:

Name

%R

Guardsafe Technology
Limited

Great Vigour Holdings
Limited

Musthave Technology
Limited

Place of
incorporation

A I E

British Virgin
Islands

ABELHS

British Virgin
Islands

ABRARE

British Virgin
Islands

ABELHS

Think Machine Technology British Virgin

Limited

Century Electronics
Trading Limited

Datatronic Limited

Datatronic Distribution,
Inc.

Champ Asset Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 45 %R

Islands

ABELHS

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
Bk

The PRC
E

California,
the US
XEMAE
EENM

Hong Kong
g8

Place of
operation

RRAEIHE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
Bt

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
Bt

The PRC
R

California,
the US
ZEMAR
EEM

Hong Kong
B

Principal activities

IREH

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Trading of electronic
components
EEST M

Investment holding and

manufacturing and trading
of electronic components

REER RER
BES Tt

Manufacturing of electronic

components
T e

Trading of electronic
components
EEET M

Property holding
RENR

wrE R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

17. B LRZER

T&RIE

FEAREEE BEIE

B2EEMBERARFE:

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
BRARAR
Ra/dREs

US$1,000
1,000%7%

Uss1
1X7

Uss1
£

Uss2
2ET

HK$2
287

HK$10,000 ordinary
HK$200,000
non-voting
deferred (i)

10,0008 EBR
200,000E T ERE
BEZRHB()

US$8,665,000
8,665,000% 70

US§1,000
1,000% 70

HKS1
&7

Percentage of ownership interests

EREREADM
Directly Indirectly

:§:: [}

2021 2020 2021 2020
01F | 200F| 2011%F| 20208

100% | 100% - =

100% | 100% - =

- - 100% | 100%

- - 100% | 100%

- - 100% | 100%

- - 100% | 100%

- - 100% | 100%

- - 100% | 100%

- - 100% | 100%

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EZERHFIZERBIRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

17. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES -

17.RBATRZES &

CONTINUED
Issued and fully
Place of Place of paid share capital/
Name incorporation  operation Principal activities registered capital Percentage of ownership interests
BRARAR
R ARAIEE XBEFECHE TERB k& /ERER REREEEAL
Directly Indirectly
E& (3
2021 2020 2021 2020
Maxgain Venture Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Property holding HK$2 - - 100%| 100%
&A Bi 2L 287
Datatronic Technology ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment holding HKS 1 - - 100%| 100%
Limited & & REEZR 187

EENRERAA

Datatronic Excel Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment holding and HKS 1 - - 100%| 100%

ERERERAA & & trading of electric 187

components
REERREES Tkt
BE(RL)REER  ThePRC The PRC Manufacturing of electronic  US$10,000,000 - - 100% | 100%
A ai) HE B components 10,000,000% 7t
HEE M
Pulse Tek Trading Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong Trading of electronic HK$2 - - 100%| 100%
& B components 287
BEETRH
Innovative Power, Inc. ~ California, the US California,the US  Manufacturing and trading of ~ US$1,000 - -| 100%| 100%
ZENAE ZEMAE electronic components 1,000
EEM EEN HEREEE A
Novotech Company Socialist Republic ~ Socialist Republic - Manufacturing of electronic ~ US$8,760,000 - -| 100%| 100%
Limited of Vietnam of Vietnam components 8,760,000% 7t
U] il HERTnf

(i)  The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights () ERZRELEROIEIRZRE  HIE
and are not entitled to any dividend on distribution BN B AESE S B 2 TR B {E AT AR
upon winding up unless a sum of HK$1,000,000,000 B RISEZERBFTEAHECED
has been distributed to each holder of the ordinary K 1,000,000,000% 7t BI{ERIH °
shares.

(i) #ZE (BER) EFHRAT is a wholly foreign owned (i) EE(ER)EFERATNI—REH
enterprise established in the PRC for a term of 30 years BRIz EBE L  KEHA30
up to September 2023. F > HE2023F98 A1k -

(i) #E (L) RHEBERAFE is a wholly foreign owned (i) #EZE (R BEERARTI—REF

enterprise established in the PRC.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED Z#ZZERHTIEREMRAT o

BRI 2 ERERSE -
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

18.INVENTORIES 1. &
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FB T
Raw materials AR 65,298 57,149
Work-in-progress B m 5,962 3,925
Finished goods SR m 35,387 22,613
106,647 83,687

19.

The Group's inventories with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$8,440,000 (2020:
HK$6,771,000) was stated at net realisable value.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Customers are generally offered a credit period
ranging from 30 days to 90 days. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management.

(@) An ageing analysis of trade receivables, based
on invoice dates, as at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

19.

REBzHATFETZRFEIEKHE
BETE B 4 538,440,000 7T (20204 :
6,771,000 7T) °

BB My B 3%
AEBE-RETFES ZEEHNF30
AZE90BZM - AEEGRY LA

HA FE W BR R

B4 48 547 P W AR K o

(a) M#&
iR

SEEEAEEEHE

sEH REBZAHNER
FARE DT ¢

2021 2020

20215 2020%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Within 30 days 30BR 17,425 16,178
31 to 60 days 31£260H 6,611 5,262
61 to 90 days 61£90H 2,211 2,575
Over 90 days 90H L £ 4,315 482
30,562 24,497

Less: Loss allowances for impairment & : JB{EEEEE (658) (913)
29,904 23,584

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 fE4F3R o
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2

021

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES — CONTINUED 19. BEU AR =X — 48
(b) The movements in the loss allowances for (b) EWERFREEERGB22FN
impairment of trade receivables are as follows: T :
2021 2020
20215 2020%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET
At 1 January M1B1H 913 517
Changes in expected credit loss FHHEE2E 5 (255) 396
At 31 December M12B831H 658 913

The Group recognised impairment loss based
on the accounting policy stated in note 4(j)(ii).

Furth
under

er details of the impairment analysis
HKFRS 9 performed on the Group's trade

receivables are set out in note 30().

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A

AREE BRI E R EEAG) () 2 E 7T HIE
MERREGE RAEERREE
B A52E RSB0 ¥ R R BR X AT #E 1T 9
EAE DA RVE — Z 15 - SR M EE

30(i) ©
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20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) ULTIMATE

wrE R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

20. FBYy  (FEfT) RERBAFTR
HOLDING COMPANY AND RELATED REATRE
COMPANIES

Particulars of the amounts due from ultimate holding
company and related companies, disclosed are as

follows:

BURRABARRBELRRBER
E5MT :

Maximum amount
outstanding
during the year

31 December ended 31 December

FERA
M12831H RSRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20215 20204 20215 20205
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THxT TET THET
Ultimate holding REAERAR
company
Onboard Technology 112 101 112 101
Related companies F@EA A
Data Express Limited* 129 116 129 116
Citicheer Enterprise Inc* 128 113 128 113
257 229

The amounts due from/(to) ultimate holding company
and related companies are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

* Mr. Siu Paul Y., a director and ultimate controlling of
the Company, has controlling interest in Data Express
Limited and Citicheer Enterprise Inc.

W, BNBEEERARKREELH
ZHBTERT  RERARERE

= o

* O BREBEEE(HERADQRZ—(NE
EMHEAREG ) #EBData Express
Limited & Citicheer Enterprise Inc.Z

A o
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21. FE £ AR 3% B 3 i BB 4 B IR

2021 2020
202145 2020%F
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FTHET
Current liabilities REBEME
Trade payables FE A3 BR K 11,170 11,537
Other payables and accruals HinENHRIERETEHR 12,921 10,226
Fee payables for construction of EREERENEHR
manufacturing plants 18,052 8,345
42,143 30,108
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Retention payable BNREE 4,510 3,339

An ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice

REERREZAPNESRRZER

dates, as at the end of the reporting period is as BOMWMT
follows:

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 30 days 30HA 4,523 7,320
31 to 60 days 31260H 3,681 3,327
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,570 677
Over 90 days 90H K E 1,396 213
11,170 11,537

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A
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2021412HA31H

31 December 2021
22. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 22. EEI&H
Details of the employee benefits and movements ETIEANEEEWNT :
thereof:
Provision for long
service payments
RERK S BB
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FBT
At the beginning of the year RARFEHY) 18,996 18,806
Exchange adjustments PE AR 355 973
Additional provision made e mARE 98 8
Reversal of provision B 5 (25) (791)
At the end of the year A E Hi R 19,424 18,996
Categorised as: DEWOT :
Due after more than one year ZR—FZBNEH 19,424 18,996

The provision for long service payments of Hong
Kong and the PRC employees is provided based on
the actual number of years of services rendered by
the employee and the relevant laws and regulations.
The provision will be settled at the time when the
respective employee left the Group.

SEARAZERRTRESRYR
BENREEESERRBFEY - HE

EPIRER BB ERE -

EREREBBRGES -
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BREFRAR

166



167

n & B B R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

23.DEFERRED TAX 23.;ERERIA
Details of the deferred tax liabilities and assets EEHBEEREGEZE2FUT

recognised and movements thereof:

Depreciation
Revaluation of  allowances in
leasehold land excess of
and buildings the related
for own use depreciation Tax losses Total
BRAZ BBHE
HEL#HE hEZ
BFfE RERRE REESR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THERL THERL TERL
At 1 January 2020 202061518 38,149 1,536 (160) 39,525
(Credit)/debit to profit or loss (31 A) /HkEEE (K310

(note 10) (848) 243 23 (582)
Debit to other comprehensive NREEM2EKS (Fr&E11)

income (note 11) 783 - - 783
At 31 December 2020 and R2020F128318 K

1 January 2021 2021561818 38,084 1,779 (137) 39,726
(Credit)/debit to profit or loss Gt A) /B EBE (KEE10)

(note 10) (1,460) 483 - (977)
Debit to other comprehensive income  MIBRE Efb 2 E K& (KEE11)

(note 11) 2,212 - - 2,212
At 31 December 2021 R 20215128318 38,836 2,262 (137) 40,961
For the purpose of presentation in consolidated ARNESENRGEEHBMRIE ER
statement of financial position. The following is the BI SR R IR B EREE D AT A0
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial T :
reporting purpose:

2021 2020

202145 20205

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Deferred tax asset EEBIEEE 311 137
Deferred tax liabilities EEFREEE (41,272) (39,863)
(40,961) (39,726)
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. & &
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Authorised: SEIE -
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000/% = IR EE
HK$0.1 each 0. 18T Z2EBR 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR
320,000,000 ordinary shares of 320,000,000/ B B EI &
HK$0.1 each 0IBRTZ2ERBR 32,000 32,000
25. RESERVES 25. i
(a) Company (a) X2
Share Contributed  Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
R aE BARH R FE &t
(note (c)(i)) (note (c)(v)) (note (c)(vi))
(&E())) (M) (M=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
At 1 January 2020 R2020€1 818 57,099 89,606 (79,113) 67,592
Changes in equity for 2020: 2020 2 B#H 2 :
Profit and total comprehensive  EERFIR 2 ARELE
income for the year - - 5359 5,359
Dividends paid (note b)) 2R E (FizEh()) - - (9,600) (9,600)

At 31 December 2020 and 120208128318 K
1 January 2021 2021%1818 57,099 89,606 (83,354) 63,351

Changes in equity for 2021: 202112 E#EH

Profit and total comprehensive  EERFIR 2 AKBLE

income for the year - - 4,043 4,043
Dividends paid (note b(i)) BIRRE (H3Eh()) - - (6,400) (6,400)
At 31 December 2021 2021%12831H 57,099 89,606 (85,711) 60,994
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

25. RESERVES - CONTINUED 25. it s — 18
(b) Dividends (b) RE
(i) Dividends paid during the year: (i) REEASZAZEKRE :
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Final dividend of HK$0.01 F AL BF ERER A
(2020: HK$0.02) per ordinary HIARHIR B SR EER0.01
share, approved and paid 7 7T (20204 : 0.027%8 7T)
during the year, in respect of
the previous year 3,200 6,400
Interim dividend of HK$0.01 EEREKNTFHRESRE
(2020: HK$0.01) per ordinary  #BA%0.017%8 T
share, declared and paid (20204 : 0.01787T)
during the year 3,200 3,200
6,400 9,600

(ii) Dividend proposed in respect of the

current year:

Final dividend, proposed, of

HK$0.01 (2020: HK$0.01) per

ordinary share

BRAHRESR
T ERO0.01B T
(20204 : 0.017%8 JT)

(i) REBARRZ R E -

2021 2020
20215 202045
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T8
3,200 3,200

The final dividend for the year proposed after
the end of the reporting period is subject to

REFEAREZZRIREA KRB
REASFRRRERERRE

shareholders’ approval in the forthcoming
general meeting. It has not been recognised
as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A

FRELHME ZREALRK
REEABRIABEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. RESERVES — CONTINUED

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Share premium

Share premium represents the excess of the
nominal value of the ordinary shares issued
by the Company and the net proceeds
from the issuance of ordinary shares after
deduction of the share issuing expenses.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate of the share capital and share
premium of subsidiaries acquired through
exchanges of shares pursuant to the
reorganisation in respect of listing of the
Company's shares on the Stock Exchange in
2001.

Property revaluation reserve

Property revaluation reserve represents gains/
losses arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve represents the exchange
difference arising from the translation of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 4(p).

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the net
asset value of subsidiaries acquired through
an exchange of shares pursuant to the
reorganisation in respect of listing of the
Company's shares on the Stock Exchange in
2001.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 fE4F3R o

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

25. f# s — &
(c) EMHEREN

(1)

(1)

BG5E

BEERIERNQATEITZ
B IR EEE R E IR AR
BRET2EBRNEFEE
(NMKRBITERAE) ZEZ8 -

BEA i
BEARFHEERA 2T MN2001
FEBXMELTARLAZE
RTEEREERREEA
MRXRRDAEEZHE L
BAlzRAMER B EERS
BN E 2 EZ5 o

(iii) YR E 1411

MEEGRFEBEEBRERER
HMEEMFEEN RS
HEE -

(iv) (E 72171

(v)

EiREEEMERRES
B LSt B SRS 2 B I IR R
MmELKINERERZ5 - It
TR BRI EA(p) B S
HREHE °

EHEE
EABRKRDDERAQAR
2001 F EHRr LA A A
ZEBRTEBREEHERE
BAHEAMXBEROAESZH
BRARAREEFRERMEZE
o
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

25. RESERVES — CONTINUED

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves — Continued

(vi) Retained earnings/accumulated losses

Cumulative net gains and losses recognised
in profit or loss.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), retained earnings and
contributed surplus are distributable to
owners of the Company, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out
of retained earnings and contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium.

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following
significant transactions with related parties:

(a)

Related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A

25. s — 18
(c) EHEREN—E&E

i) RE &R Rt 1E

REZPLREMART Z2FR

HmREE

REBEBREIGIFEQAE
(RBIEFT) 2R E  REBEF
REXRGTOARNAE
BADIK HEARESE TIH
# o BARQTEATER ()
AARBEKRHED KESE
EEEBEBEE R ()AA
AEEZAZREBEEDIK
BEELRAEAQTZEER
HEe#TRARRD REZ
#F > Bl A BK kK 8 iR
ERURBEAREHMBR

DK

26 REANLR S

ERFER  AKEETIIHEEEA

TETZEARS :

(a)

BRETRBEIIAZERT 2EB
BERG Wit \GEZEKWEER

of the Listing Rules, included in the consolidated ZEEATRZUOT :
statement of comprehensive income are as
follows:
2021 2020
20215 20205
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHE T
Datatronics Romoland, Inc. (“DRI")*
Sales to DRI BIDRIHE 2 £ 88 44,524 40,505
Reimbursement of expenses to DRI [IDRIZZENX B F H 11,388 10,617

#  Mr. Siu Paul Y., a director and ultimate controlling
party of the Company, has controlling interest in

DRI.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - 26 EANTRS &

CONTINUED
(b) Related party balances included in the (b) SHAREMBMRRERZBEEANL
consolidated statement of financial position: o2
2021 2020
2021% 2020%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Year-end balance included in trade  [IDRISSEE &= £ B R
receivables arising from sale of ZEREER
goods to DRI 529 100
Year-end balance arising from MERAEZERATENERK
advance to ultimate holding EBEECZERER
company
— Onboard Technology — Onboard Technology
(note 20) (Mt=£20) 112 101
Year-end balances arising from BEEATENBREE
advance to related companies: ZERERR
— Data Express Limited (note 20) — Data Express Limited
(M$=E20) 129 116
— Citicheer Enterprise Inc (note 20) — Citicheer Enterprise Inc
(Mt=£20) 128 113
Year-end balance arising from HDRMY B 2 F R4 8k
and due to DRI 423 583

(@)

Key management personnel remuneration of the
Group

(@)

AEBTEEBEABS ZH M

2021 2020

20215 2020%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FERT

Short-term employee benefits EHHEERT 11,530 11,515
Post-employment benefits EAEER 18 18
11,548 11,533

The key management personnel of the Group are
the executive directors of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 fE4F3R o
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

27.LEASES

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as
lessee)

The Group leases a number of properties in the
jurisdictions from which it operates. Leases of these
properties comprise only fixed payments over the

27. 88

HEFBWMHE (IEBEASH)

AEBEE

HEEMENREEREM

EZYX - -YEXAEERFEEEY
A9 E E S 5K e

lease term.
Lease liabilities HEEE
2021 2020
20215 2020%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FERT
Buildings BF
At 1 January »1B1H 859 1,295
Lease modification HEIEK 931 _
Interest expenses FMEXZH 36 44
Lease payments HEMR (560) (480)
At 31 December M12H831H 1,266 859
Future lease payments are due as follows: REBRKBEENRAOT :
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
BEESESK F & BRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FERT THET
31 December 2021 2021512H31H
Not later than one year B F 601 (25) 576
Later than one year and TFRETER2E
not later than two years 526 (10) 516
Later than two years and not 2F & B TERSE
later than five years 175 (1) 174
1,302 (36) 1,266
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31

20214 12H31H
December 2021

27.LEASES — CONTINUED 27. 818
Lease liabilities — Continued HEEE-—&
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
RIEBETRK F 2 HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T FET TFET
31 December 2020 2020512A31H
Not later than one year TEMF 479 (25) 454
Later than one year and 1FE#RETER2E
not later than two years 412 (7) 405
891 (32) 859
The present value of future lease payments are ARESNHEEIFAOT :
analysed as:
2021 2020
20214 20205
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current liabilities RBAE 576 454
Non-current liabilities ERBERB 690 405
At 31 December M12B831H 1,266 859
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HESBEZANE 36 44
Short-term lease expenses I E X 617 652
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

27.LEASES - CONTINUED

The Group as a lessor

The Group's investment property is leased to a tenant
under an operating lease. At the end of the year, the
Group had total future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

27. 18— &
EEHEE -

HAEA

REBNREVENEERET HME
FHERBEA-REER THREEE

HERTREBWESHT :

follows:
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year 1F R 2,160 192
In the second to the fifth year FE2EESF 2,746 -
4,906 192
28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. BEKIE

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET

Commitment for the acquisition of: EREBETIEAN

BAREIE

— manufacturing plants -4 ERE 4,481 32,715
— properties — ) 59 59
— machinery and equipment —HRTE 193 433
4,733 33,207

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A
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2021412HA31H

31 December 2021
29. THE COMPANY'S STATEMENT OF 29. AFIZ BRI E
FINANCIAL POSITION
Notes 2021 2020
Bt &F 20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT T8
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG A 113,606 113,606
113,606 113,606
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FE{FERFR ~ &R
receivables H b FE W FR 18 126 138
Cash and cash equivalents RekZERPRLEER 101 106
227 244
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE AT B B A B FIE 20,745 18,405
Other payables H th fE S+ FRIE 94 94
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 20,839 | 18,499
Net current liabilites ~~~~ #®@&fF®E =~ | (20612)  (18,255)
NET ASSETS EEZRE 92,994 95,351
Equity =
Share capital i@ 24 32,000 32,000
Reserves i 25 60,994 63,351
TOTAL EQUITY R iEEE 92,994 95,351
On behalf of the Board of Directors AREEEN

Siu Paul Y.
miRE

Director

EE
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's major financial instruments include, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency
risk. The Group does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments either for hedging or trading
purposes. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out as below.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(i) Credit risk

As at 31 December 2021, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer
rather than the industries and countries in which
customers operate and therefore significant
concentration of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group has a certain concentration of credit
risk as approximately 15% (2020: 22%) and 50%
(2020: 53%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group's largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A

30. M m b EE

AEBEZIEZESRTIABERERSE
BHRELEE - Bl RAEMEWERR -
BNERAEEMESRIR - 2SR
TEAFBRIMEPRE - 2SR
TEEEzRARBEBREEERR R
MR FREBRREEERE A%
B ERE IS B NFHH
TREMEMT A - MAREZERR
ZBUREFI T3 -

AEEzRERREETIHHHEH
mHEZAAFEAMY  XBREERE
ARHAEEMBERBEBERZ TN
2 -EHEEEREEZSAR ®
REER BRI St BREVE & = 18 1 ©

(i) EERR
A2021F 128318 ' HFREER
B 7RI LUAR & B B AR R 3R & B K
EEZREBERT

JE W BE X

REVERRMS  AEEZEE
EREESEREFZTABRE
& MIBRFMEEZTERR
RNENER Bt EERR
ZEPFHEFEREAEERENE
FzEERK -R&EER AR
FE W BR X8 ZE 2 15% (2020 :
22%) % 50% (20204 : 53%) %
AAERAEEZRAEFRE
AREF BAKEEZEERKIE

HeE .
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31 December 2021

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - 30 MEREER — 8

CONTINUED
(i) Credit risk - Continued

() FERR-&

Trade receivables — Continued

In order to minimise risk, the management has
a credit policy in place and the exposure to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’
financial position and condition is performed
on all customers periodically. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current liability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The
Group does not require collateral in respect of its
financial assets. Debts are usually due within 90
days from the date of billing.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowances based on past due status is
not further distinguished among the Group's
different customer bases.

REERERERERRR B
EECAGEERXEY mMEH
REBEAEDREER -HEFY
RN R AR 2 5 B REAR T3 E
HEEFET ZSETEEDRE
FBEXMNRHRE2TERE
Bl 2EBRED  ARBEFEE
BERREFEEMEEBEREZ
ER - FAEEHRVYBEELFE
REBEFR -BEBERAE
H#B90H MBI -

AEENREFENNAREE
FERESHESERBERRNEERR
B ZEEERBRBERTE -
HRASENELEFERRER
WRBEBRTEAEFHNBRE
AFEREZR  RAHRED
FREBEETSE-SPRAKEN
TEEFHED °
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -

CONTINUED
(i) Credit risk - Continued

Trade receivables — Continued

The following table provides information about
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk and
ECLs for trade receivables:

30. M MR EE - &

() FERR-&
FEW IR — &
T RIEHAEA S EE R E W
RNBRREERBREABEES
BER:

Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
HHEEER REE BiREEE
(%) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(F&x) (F#&x)

2021 20214
Current (not past due) BNER (REHER) 0.00%-5.23% 20,994 395
1-30 days past due BH1-30H 0.51%-5.73% 3,758 57
31-60 days past due BHA31-60H 1.02%-6.24% 2,143 60
61-90 days past due BH61-90H 3.05%-8.27% 3,017 119
More than 90 days past due  @HI90H A & 5.08%-10.30% 650 27
30,562 658

Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHBER SREE BEEE
(%) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(FE&x) (F#x)

2020 2020F
Current (not past due) ENER (REHR) 2.82%-5.57% 20,116 734
1-30 days past due BE1-30H 3.31%-6.06% 2,619 97
31-60 days past due #HA31-60H 3.80%-6.55% 1,414 61
61-90 days past due #H61-90H 5.77%-8.52% 317 19
More than 90 days past due  #HI90H M £ 7.74%-10.49% 31 2
24,497 913

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group's view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of

the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -
CONTINUED

()

(ii)

Credit risk - Continued

Deposits, other receivables and amounts due
from related companies

The Group adopts general approach for ECLs of
deposits, other receivables and amounts due from
related companies, except for the gross carrying
amount of other receivables of HK$2,381,000
as at 31 December 2020 which the directors
considered as credit-impaired and these financial
assets are classified as stage one and only
12-month ECLs are considered. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, expected credit loss
of HK$2,381,000 was reversed (2020: expected
credit loss of HK$2,381,000 was made) on the
credit-impaired other receivables.

Deposits with banks

The Group mitigates its exposure to credit risk by
placing deposits with the banks with established
credit rating. Given the high credit ratings of
the banks, management does not expect any
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demand, subject to board
approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of its non-derivative financial liabilities,
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the
Group can be demanded for repayment. The
table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.
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30. M MR EE - &

(i)

(i)

EERME-&
e HttBWREWEERXTF

IR

AEEHZS HUEWERE
FEW R A B FIERA — R E
FEEBMEERE  RA20204F
12B31BE W ERRAZREE
2,381,000 B THEERABEE
BEN ZEEREEWIEAR
F—BER REE12@ A WFEH
EEEE - BE2021%F12831H
LtFE > EREMmEBERIRERR
{E[E1#2,381,0008 TWTEHE &
182K (20205 : #E 12,381,000
THEBEERX) °

RIT 75
AEEBBERFERFEENRN
TREBUAREEHENEER
o ERBTESHEENR
EEEYFRPARYE S EEE
BEHER -

i B 1 L B
rEBDhZENEELEEEE
HEXBZREERE BERLAE
BReENREREESER 2HE
ZIEEUNENERZREER -
AEBZBRAEHNERERE
REHRBMEERRREHERE
M2 A& URREEEREN
ZRERBREREAZHTES
BMEBRHACHEREURMNH
EHRRBMZREBMEER -

TREMAHIINEE R AKEN
FITETREBERBEEEENS
MEBRTENHM - TRIIBBASE
ERITHREREENZE RPN
THEEARMRETRERH -
ZREFBINEREAERERE -
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31 December 2021

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -
CONTINUED

(ii) Liquidity risk — Continued

30. M MR EE - &

(ii) B E b —

2021
2021%

Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow  on demand 5 year

g )
REBH MER BB1E
FEEE RERE FRER BFRSF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TER TER TER
Trade and other payables ENREMEMTRE 39,874 39,874 39,874 -
Amount due to a related party ~ EFEE A FFHE 423 423 423 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,266 1,302 601 701
Retention payable ERRES 4,510 4,510 - 4,510
46,073 46,109 40,898 5,211

2020
2020%

Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 5 year

Amenn
RERH MER BEI1F
BRESH RERE FREX BARSE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBRL TER TERT THER
Trade and other payables B R E AR 58 28,507 28,507 28,507 =
Amount due to a related party ~ EFfBE A FFHE 583 583 583 =
Lease liabilities HERE 859 891 479 412
Retention payable ERRES 3,339 3,339 - 3,339
33,288 33,320 29,569 3,751

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED E:ZERHZIZREMR AR o ANNUAL REPORT 2021 54




wrE R R M R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -
CONTINUED

(iii)

(iv)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Cash
flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. As
the Group has no interest-bearing liabilities, the
Group’s expenses and financing cash flows are
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risks as the Group has cash at banks which
are interest-earning at variable rates. The
management monitors interest rate exposures
and considered that there is no significant impact
on cash flow interest rate risk.

Currency risk

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect
to the foreign exchange exposure. The Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of
operation to which they relate.

(a) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. The Group is
mainly exposed to the fluctuation of United
States dollars (“US$"), RMB, Euro and Pound
Sterling. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in HK$,
translated using the spot rate at the year-end
date.

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

30. M MR EE - &

(i) 2 FERRERERNZERE

NFEMNEREREESHIAZ
BERTSMNRECMKE R
o-REREFNERERRIETH
TEZRRBESREET S =E
BMmKEB zER - HRAKE
TEFERE  HAKEZHX
FRERETRENBIN TSR
R2EBE

AEERERSRSRRLER
HAFEMSIRRERENEE
B-EREERMNEZYERA
BALRBNEABFEEER
AERHE -

(iv) E¥ & b

BB A& B I R SME & B ET
MERER o AEBEAEH K S
ERmETERAUMELEERLK
MEEEREUNIcEBRENMH
HHEBERAE o

@) EXEEzZE
TRAFAEEREERE
HHOMRERAMNUEBEZE
BIEEBUINI 2 ERERE
NeEBERBBEIEHKB -
AEBEBEREHET A
R¥ BTREHF K-
LFEERAZHHERER
‘R OEBRARBRIFENET
25
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - 30. A ¥ M B EH - 4R
CONTINUED
(iv) Currency risk — Continued (iv) E¥E— &
(a) Exposure to currency risk - Continued (a) EMEfE o2&
2021
2021%
Pound
us$ RMB Sterling Euro
EYH AR R BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT FET TR TER
Cash and cash equivalents  BERZREBEELER 80,717 34,704 1,157 2,151
Trade and other receivables ~ FEU R Eth E I TR 1B 8,809 61 - -
Trade and other payables B RHEtEMFFHIE (2,143) (161) - -
Overall exposure arising from REHERREERAR
recognised assets and LEEYE
liabilities 87,383 34,604 1,157 2,151
2020
2020%
Pound
S RMB Sterling Euro
E AR HEE BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FaET THET TR TET
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRZERREEE 168,514 38,412 1,164 2,335
Trade and other receivables  FEUR & E fh FE W3R 1E 6,196 76 = =
Trade and other payables R H B[ E (2,163) - - -
Overall exposure arising from REERREERAE
recognised assets and LEETE
liabilities 172,547 38,488 1,164 2,335
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -
CONTINUED
(iv) Currency risk - Continued
(b) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
approximate change in the Group's profit/
loss for the year and retained earnings in
response to reasonably possible changes in
translating relevant foreign currency against
HK$ to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting

wrE R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

30. MR EE - &

(iviE¥ER-&

(b) &=k

E 7

TRIEAQAR 2B & &R
JS(EBE) RREERNE K
SEEAENEBEANE
A SN BE R 49 o] gE L T
EENBIOEE - THEH
x& A B R AR B A
(2020% : BERP KRB G

period. A positive number below indicates FIEA0) o
an increase in profit and retained earnings
(2020: a decrease in loss and an increase
retained earnings).
2021 2020
20216 2020%F
Increase/
(decrease) in
(Decrease)/ loss for the
Increase/ increase in Increase/ year and
(decrease) in profit | (decrease) in decrease/
foreign  for the year foreign (increase)
exchange and retained exchange in retained
rates earnings rates earnings
FEBR
FEMNE B/ (Hd)
HEEZRHN - RREEF NEEZ  REZHET
#m/hd) (BD)/%m | 8m/08d) ®ED/(B)
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
THER FER
Monetary net assets UARBEEN 3% (1,038) 3% 1,155
denominated in RMB BEE (3%) 1,038 (3%) (1,155)

Other components of consolidated equity
would not be affected (2020: Nil) by the
changes in foreign exchange rates.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 fE4F3R o

HEREERE T 2 i EB40I&EFIE

BERpy &L

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED EZERHFIZERBIRA A

TEE (20204 & &) o

184



185

n & B B R R M R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT -
CONTINUED

(iv) Currency risk — Continued
(b) Sensitivity analysis - Continued

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to each of the Group entities’ exposure to
currency risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date, and
that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes
in foreign exchange rates over the period
until the end of the next annual reporting
period. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the HK$ and the
US$ would be materially unaffected by any
changes in movement in value of the US$
against other currencies. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on
each of the group entities’ profit/loss for the
year and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at
the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2020.

The foreign exchange rates movement
between Pound Sterling, Euro and HK$
has insignificant impact to the results and
financial positions of the Group.

(v) Fair values

The directors consider that the carrying amount
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A
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SEETSEERERARARE
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Lz B BIEEREHESR
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IIRD 2 ERAREEASE
EETEERRSEDIREE
HHELREER ZERKR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group regards the equity attributable to the
Company’s owners, comprising share capital, share
premium, retained earnings and other reserves as
its capital structure. The Group’s objective when
managing capital structure is to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net
debt. Total debt is calculated as the total of trade
and other payables, amount due to a related party,
retention payable, lease liabilities and provision
of employee benefits. Capital represents equity
attributable to owners of the Company. No gearing
ratios are presented as the Group had no net debt as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

1. BAEERBER

REBRALAEBARLEEZSH
EX (BREECBRITRAE ROEE R
BENREMERE) - AERENERE
ERERFREAKEHSEALER
BURBBRREHRE HE HMERBEA L
TRAEE o RERNHBRERRE
AEERERAEINATFRRORE
RORATRRFBITHR ©

SERAEEEERERELR  AF
BEBRUEARABEMLEFERK - B
BRBBTERENRAREMEN
MIE - EBHBEEARNKE  BHYRE
¢ HEEBREIRGAEBE BX
BERNATEE AEGEREZ - HRAK
£ER2020F K%2021F 12831 B &
FEXK AUt EXEERLREER
5l o

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 ££4E8R ¢ DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED #EZERIFZIREGIRA T

186



187

n & B B R R M R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

32. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The following table shows the carrying amount of

financial assets and liabilities as defined in notes 4(j)(i)
and 4(j)(iii):

R.MERENMEBERASRERE

T R M FEAG) ()B4l 2 E & 5 &
MHBREENMHEREZREE :

Carrying amount

FREE
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Financial assets HMBEE
Financial assets measured at amortised IREER AT EZH K EE
cost
— Cash and cash equivalents - BeRERBE£EB 208,215 256,722
— Trade receivables — B IR 29,904 23,584
— Deposits and other receivables —REREMEWFIE 868 1,347
— Amount due from ultimate holding - ERAER A RRIE
company 112 101
— Amounts due from related companies — FEULEFE A T FRIE 257 229
239,356 281,983
Financial liabilities HMEasE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised R # R AT 2 2 M B EEB
cost
— Trade and other payables —EAERR R E MBS 39,874 28,507
— Amount due to a related company —EBEERRRIE 423 583
— Retention payable -ERRE® 4,510 3,339
44,807 32,429
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OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows

33.NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

wrE R R M R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

33.GEReNERME

HREEHELENESREAEED

arising from financing activities: B SRR
Amount
due to a
related Lease Dividend
party liabilities payable Total
FE 13 BA =
ATRNRE HEAEE EIRE W
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FHET FET
(note 27) (note 25(b))
(FFzE27) (BFEE25(b))
At 1 January 2020 M2020F181H 523 1,295 = 1,818
Changes from cash flow: BEEZ7ZE&1L :
Dividends paid 2fRE -~ - (9,600) (9,600)
Advance from A 60 - - 60
Lease payments HE - (480) = (480)
Non-cash changes: HHEz M -
Dividends declared EERKRE - - 9,600 9,600
Interest expenses FE X H - 44 - 44
At 31 December 2020 and 420205 12831H
1 January 2021 %2021F1818 583 859 - 1,442
Changes from cash flows: E£FHZEE1E :
Dividends paid EfIRE - - (6,400) (6,400)
Repayment to E® (160) - - (160)
Lease payments HEF - (560) - (560)
Non-cash changes: FHHE 2
Dividends declared EERKE - - 6,400 6,400
Lease modification HEMEK - 931 - 931
Interest expenses FE & H - 36 - 36
At 31 December 2021 M2021%F12831H 423 1,266 - 1,689
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20214 12H31H
31 December 2021

34.

35.

PAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTIES

The Group entered into contracts to acquire
properties in Vinh Yen City, Vinh Phuc Province,
Vietnam, on 7 April 2020. The handover of the
properties has been completed in January 2021. The
outstanding payment amounting to approximately
HK$59,000 will be settled upon receiving ownership
certificates. The outstanding amount is not yet
settled up to the date of approval of these financial
statements. The capital commitments are set out in
note 28.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
March 2022.

DATRONIX HOLDINGS LIMITED ZEZERHFIZERERA A

34. B MR Z =

REBENA2020F4878 » BT WEB L
FA#EVinh Phuc Province, Vinh Yen
Cityfy ¥ % - MEER2021F 1B TR
AT o BRFR£959,00058 Tt # FA Uk Bk
ERIAIEEE BEAMBREKME
2B BREAKRLEE o BEREESH
PAFFEE28 ©
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AEBR2017EZ221EHBREEZHEE
mRkEMEERRRRAEER2017F
2018%F ~ 20194 ~ 20205 K 2021512 A31
BrEERERRROT

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the Group for the financial years
2017 to 2021 and the consolidated statements of financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, 2018,
2019, 2020 and 2021 are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A3MBLLEE
Results B4 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20175 20184 2019& 20205 20215
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000
FETT TBT FET TBT FET
Revenue —E 3 280,964 312,644 284,225 230,806 | 243,601
Profit/(loss) before BEBDEAN S (EE)
taxation 43,134 52,600 23,353 (4,064) 6,872
Income tax riE% (43) (4,631) (5,710) (2,844) (3,046)
Profit/(loss) for the year AREERA, (E18) 43,091 47,969 17,643 (6,908) 3,826
Attributable to: FEALER 17 :
Owners of the Company ZAAQFEEE A 43,091 47,969 17,643 (6,908) 3,826
At 31 December
M12H31H
Assets and liabilities EEREE 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20175 20184 2019& 20205 20215
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000
FETT FBT FET TBT T T
Total assets EEH 858,948 947,412 968,751 959,838 | 989,499
Total liabilities BB (76,810) (86,630) (104,611) (94,249)| (111,310)
Total equity EFAEm 782,138 860,782 864,140 865,589 | 878,189
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Major land and buildings held by the Group AEEEEXTEITHRETF
Percentage

Location Existing usage Term of lease of interest

b B RSRAR HEH @ ®E

Hong Kong
i

499 King's Road, North Point Office Long term 100%

BB AREBEA995 WAZE ®E

8 Russell Street, Causeway Bay Investment Long term 100%

property

=B 81 i 2 2 R A8 REWH & H

Overseas

=30

A parcel of industrial land at Lun Jian Town, Shunde Industrial Medium term 100%
District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, PRC

—EBURPEEREHLTIERE MHELT I AR

A parcel of industrial land at Banfu Town, Zhongshan Industrial Medium term 100%
City, Guangdong Province, PRC

— BRI EERE P ILHREEL I B A

3 Storeys of industrial building at Baofa Group Industrial Medium term 100%

building, Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, PRC

ZEURPBEEREHLHIEERRE I% P
KREEXPLONIERE
A parcel of industrial land at Ba Thien Il Industrial Medium term 100%

Industrial Park, Binh Xuyen District,
Vinh Phuc Province, Vietnam

—RUAEEKEEF)IGEBEITXE L T A

4 apartments at Vinh Yen City, Residential Medium term 100%
Vinh Phuc Province, Vietnam
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